
  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

 
Health,  Adult Social Care 

and Social Inclusion Policy 
and Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 14 June 2016 
7.00 pm 

COMMITTEE ROOM 1 - HAMMERSMITH TOWN HALL 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration: Opposition Co-optees 

Councillor Hannah Barlow 
Councillor Rory Vaughan 
(Chair) 
Councillor Natalia Perez 
 

Councillor Andrew Brown 
Councillor Joe Carlebach 
 

Patrick McVeigh, 
Action on Disability 
Bryan Naylor, Age UK 
Debbie Domb, 
HAFCAC 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Kayode Adewumi 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2499 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 

Date Issued: 
 

06 June 2016 
 

 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Health,  Adult Social Care and Social 
Inclusion Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
Agenda 

 
14 June 2016 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 8 

 (a) To approve as an accurate record and the Chair to sign the 
minutes of the meeting of the Health, Adult Social Care and 
Social Inclusion PAC held on 18 April 2016. 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.  

 

4.   COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2016/17, APPOINTMENT OF VICE 
CHAIR AND TERMS OF REFERENCE  

9 - 11 

 To note the Committee’s terms of reference and membership and to 
appoint a Vice-chair for the 2016/2017 municipal year. 
 
 

 



5.   APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS   

 The Committee is asked to agree the re-appointment of the following 
coopted members: 
 
Debbie Domb, Disabilities Campaigner 
Patrick McVeigh, Action on Disability 
Bryan Naylor, Age UK 
 

 

6.   ADDRESSING FOOD POVERTY IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM  12 - 22 

 This report outlines progress on addressing food poverty in 
Hammersmith & Fulham.  
 

 

7.   DRAFT CLCH'S QUALITY ACCOUNT FOR 2015-16  23 - 94 

 The Committee is invited to submit any formal comments on the draft 
CLCH’s quality account for 2015-16 to the Trust.  
 

 

8.   CLINICAL SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS - PROPOSED NEW 
PATHWAYS FOR ACUTE MEDICINE AND CHEST PAIN PATIENTS  

95 - 103 

 This report sets out the case for change and the proposals developed 
by Trust clinicians for improving the current acute medicine and chest 
pain patient pathways.  The Trust wishes to engage as widely as 
possible on the proposals during a planned engagement period. 
 

 

9.   WORK PROGRAMME  104 - 105 

 The Committee is asked to consider its work programme for the 
remainder of the municipal year. 
 

 

10.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 Tuesday 12 July 2016 
Monday 12 September 2016 
Wednesday 2 November 2016 
Monday 12 December 2016 
Tuesday 31 January 2107 
Wednesday 8 March 2017 
Monday 10 April 2017 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 
 

Health,  Adult 
Social Care and 
Social Inclusion 

Policy and 
Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Monday 18 April 2016 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Hannah Barlow, Andrew Brown, Joe Carlebach, 
Rory Vaughan (Chair) and Natalia Perez 
 
Co-opted members: Patrick McVeigh (Action on Disability) and Bryan Naylor (Age 
UK) 
 
Other Councillors: Sue Fennimore and Sharon Holder  
 
Officers: Chris Neill ASC Whole Systems Lead, Paul Rackham, Sue Spiller and 
Stephan Falvey  
 
Other Attendees: Dr Tim Spicer Chair H&F CCG’s, Andrew Pike, CCG, Janet 
Cree CCG, Sophie Ruiz, CCG, Julie Sands, NHS England, Dr Sarah Wallace, 
Public Health, Lucy Rumbellow, NHS England, Stuart Lines, Deputy Director Public 
Health, Vanessa Andreae, Clinical Commissioning, Ian Lawry Chief Executive 
Officer SOBUS and Joy Houghton-Brown, Bishop Creighton House.  
 
 
 

 
61. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 14 MARCH 2016  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2016 were approved as an 
accurate record and signed by the Chair Councillor Rory Vaughan. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

62. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Vivienne Lukey and 
Debbie Domb. 
 

63. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Joe Carlebach declared an other significant interest in all items on 
the agenda as the Vice Chair of the Royal National Orthopaedic Hospital 
Trust, Stanmore. 
 

64. DECISION TO RE-ORDER THE AGENDA  
 
In view of parties present at the meeting the Chair proposed that the agenda 
be re-ordered, with which the Committee agreed, and the minutes reflect the 
order of the meeting.  
 

65. UPDATE ON CO-PRODUCTION IN COMMISSIONING  
 
Ian Lawry CEO from Sobus provided an overview of Co-Production in 
Hammersmith and Fulham.  He talked about their vision to transform the 
process via which services were designed and delivered locally.  He also 
described the way in which residents would be involved in decision making 
and provided the local context. The key points were: 
 

 Parity of Contribution  
 Altering the delivery model of public services  
 Offering people a range of incentives  
 Engaging peer and personal networks alongside professionals to 

transfer knowledge  
 Removing the distinction between professionals and recipients and 

between producers and consumers  
 Enabling public service agencies to become catalysts and facilitators 

rather than being the main providers  
 
He also spoke about the two areas which had been chosen for the co-
production pilots which were the “Carers Service” and the “Supported 
Employment Service” and the positive feedback they had received during and 
since the pilots.  He went on to say that Sobus had also been appointed to 
use a co-production approach with the “Children’s and Families’ Universal 
Service”. 
 
Ian Lawry in response to questions from Patrick McVeigh stated that 
embedding change was a learning process and not a finished product.  He 
added he was disappointed with the feedback that things were not working 
well but found it useful. He also confirmed in response to Bryan Naylor’s 
question that the charter covered the ground rules for co-commissioning in 
procurement and was not just about the commissioning process.  He also 
talked about mentoring and buddying for those involved and confirmed that 
they wanted to and were looking at the best ways to ensure a wide range of 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

participation.  He summarised that with co-production design from start to 
finish anyone can be involved. 
 
Ian Lawry in response to questions from the Chair, Councillor Vaughan 
confirmed that they were learning as they went and that once best practice 
was agreed a list of recommendations would be provided in terms of training.  
He also stated that there would be measures around levels of engagement 
and residents feedback and that each service would have specific outcome 
measurement which would be developed by partners not commissioners.  He 
concluded by stating that they were unpicking and testing at present and that 
not everything needed to be co-produced.  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Carlebach, it was confirmed by Ian 
Lawry that there were 500 organisations on their database which included the 
Police and groups for young people and that they also provided online 
surveys and focus groups.  He also stated in response to Councillor Perez 
that they had started the pilots off with a light remit which they were looking to 
expand moving forward.  He added that it was about continuous  learning and 
improvement and that the goal in the first year was to get feedback and not to 
implement change as that would take more time. 
 
In response to questions from Councillor Barlow, Ian Lawry stated that it was 
a template charter and would provide details of specific services.  He gave 
the example of funding sources for volunteering and stated that outcomes 
would be related to needs.  He also confirmed that it would enable people 
with valuable skills to contribute and gave the example of ex-carers sharing 
knowledge as helpline volunteers. He also went on to explain that they were 
not yet at the point of holding anyone to account but that the group dynamic 
created an uneasy feeling which promoted doing things differently. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Brown it was stated by Ian Lawry 
that they were working on a more holistic approach where everyone would be 
working together and that they were hoping to achieve a massive shift where 
in the future instead of holding anyone to account they would be promoting 
the collective we with everyone taking joint responsibility.  
 
Councillor Barlow commented that it would be interesting to see how service 
users and residents fitted into the accountability matrix. 
 
Councillor Fennimore thanked Ian Lawry for leading on Co-Production and 
stated that it was good to have this interesting work shared at Committee.  
 
Councillor Vaughan noted the key points of the discussion for future reporting 
which were: 
 

1. Having a broad range of participants involved and not just the usual 
suspects.  

2. Seeing the measures of success developed from the pilots.  
3. Sharing of the learning, training and behaviour change that the 

programme looked to deliver.  

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

4. The scrutiny of Co-Production in the future the collective “We” and the 
shift from the us and them culture.   

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

66. SOCIAL INCLUSION AND LONELINESS IN THE BOROUGH  
 
Sue Spiller introduced and summarised the report.  She outlined the key 
challenge which was identifying those most at risk and shared information 
about successful creative projects such as “Men in Sheds”.  
 
Sue Spiller also talked about the causes of loneliness which were not always 
consistent or obvious to work out.  She also talked about the measures that 
were in place and the other initiatives that the council was working on, 
including responding to the duties set out in the Care Act 2014. 
 
In conclusion she discussed the next steps for officers which included a 
workshop on addressing Loneliness and Isolation being held in April, and a 
proposal from Bryan Naylor to host a broader conference on the subject later 
in the year.  A range of initiatives are contributing to this area of work, 
including the 4th annual Silver Sunday campaign in October.  Further work will 
be done by officers to look at how improved joining up of services will support 
a more coordinated prevention strategy across the council, health and 
voluntary sector. 
 
Bryan Naylor commented that the biggest issues was identifying people and 
talked about the freedom pass data being a start point.  In response Sue 
Spiller confirmed that freedom pass information was subject to data protection 
and the council’s ability to use it for broader communication purposes was 
extremely limited.  Sue Spiller also noted that the 2014 Silver Sunday 
campaign had included distributing a printed Silver Sunday guide to all over 
60s through the Older People’s Freedom Pass database.  However, the Silver 
Sunday campaign was expensive to produce (£14,000 for the event 
programme printing and distribution and £5,000 for small grants for local 
Silver Sunday events), but the net result was that only 30 new individuals are 
known to have taken up activities or joined groups as a result of the scheme 
 
Bryan Naylor also noted that the ‘Time of Your Life’ event, was successful in 
reaching large numbers of local older people, but is an expensive event to 
run.  
 
Councillor Carlebach gave the example of an elderly person who was locked 
out of her home and the difficulty in getting her access despite both housing 
and health partners being aware of her situation.  
 
Councillor Brown stated he felt the issue was not just identifying people but 
convincing them to join in and making the offer universally interesting enough 
to appeal to a wide range of audiences.  He also suggested that asking 
people to help was a subtle way to address the issue of loneliness. 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Sue Spiller responded that a range of organisations have different 
approaches which can be successful.  She spoke about the Co-op and how 
they had impacted the local community through noticing isolated customers in 
their stores and enabling staff to provide broader support and assistance. 
 
Councillor Perez commented that advice centres and agencies as well as 
third sector organisations were the first places people went for support. Sue 
Spiller responded that whilst many local organisations are in touch with local 
residents who enjoy the activities and services they offer, for many, the offer 
of the more traditional support and activities is perceived negatively, and a 
new approach is needed which provides isolated residents with opportunities 
to contribute and help others and by doing so, help themselves. 
 
Bryan Naylor suggested the idea of getting people interested in renovating 
furniture. He also talked about the avoidance of stereotyping people by 
offering bingo and canteen food. 
 
Councillor Fennimore commented that she felt it was necessary to go back to 
basics and that with the campaign to end loneliness there could be digital 
inclusion. She also felt it was important to look at what was being offered and 
to consider financial need.  
 
The Chair Councillor Rory Vaughan thanked officers for the report and stated 
that there was a need to agree ways of identifying those at risk and to help 
them identify themselves. He also noted the connectivity of services was 
important and the challenge was to bring about positive change.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

67. ACCESS TO GP SERVICES  
 
 
Julie Sands and Vanessa Andrea introduced and summarised the 
report.  They talked about the patient experience in booking an appointment 
and the national patient survey results. The other areas covered were GP 
access arrangements and extended out of hours services, patient 
engagement and the range of commissioned services. They also talked about 
practice locations, the GP workforce and promotion and awareness of out of 
hospital services. 
 
Julie Sands in response to questions from Councillor Carlebach stated that 
data was available for each borough. She agreed to provide this data to the 
Committee.  She also confirmed that when a GP practice closes that 
vulnerable patients are contacted and given additional support to re-register.  
Vanessa Andrea also confirmed that residents were able to use walk in 
services regardless of which part of the borough they lived in and that there 
was a local pilot to register homeless people which GPs were aware of. 
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Action: JS 
 
Councillor Brown commented that it was good news to be above the ‘London 
Average’ and that the extended hours scheme was a fantastic service.  In 
response to a question on extended hours, Vanessa Andrea confirmed that 
80% of availability had been booked and 26 practices were using weekend 
plus.  She added it was an upward trend and that they were currently re-
negotiating for the future.  
 
In response to questions from Councillor Barlow, it was confirmed by 
Vanessa Andrea that workforce planning was an issue.  There was no 
guidance on the number of GP’s in a Borough.  She added that they were 
aware of the need to work with partners on this issue and that extended hours 
were worked by existing GP’s.  It was also confirmed that the names of 
services in the report were not customer facing names and the aim was to 
keep it simple for service users. 
Vanessa Andrea in response to questions from Patrick McVeigh stated that it 
was possible to train receptionists to ask questions to help patients establish 
how urgent their condition was but that it was essentially up to individual GP 
practices how they managed themselves. She added that people should not 
underestimate the nursing resource that was available and that there 
were  also lots of helpful local initiatives.  
 
Julie Sands confirmed in response to questions from the Chair Councillor 
Vaughan that the GP contract set out what had to be delivered to patients but 
not how it should be delivered but that they monitored adherence to contracts.  
.  She also confirmed that the patient survey covered the registered patient 
population.  It is difficult to measure the unregistered population but 
information on how to register with a doctor is given out at local hospitals. 
 
Julie Sands stated in response to questions from Councillor Holder that in 
order to improve satisfaction levels with same day access  constant 
monitoring of demand and supply for appointments by practices was 
necessary which could be very challenging. She added that they had 
captured good practice models for use by practices and sharing.  Vanessa 
Andrea confirmed that urgent care - out of hours and 111 was provided by 
Central West London (CWL) in Hammersmith and Fulham.   CWL was the 
provider for all opted-out, out of hours services in H & F.  She also confirmed 
that the patient engagement committee and participation groups were looking 
at the issue of communication that were raised at the Neighbourhood Health 
Forum.  She would keep Councillor Holder informed of progress. She also 
agreed to provide information on Primary Care Investment to Councillor 
Holder after the Co-commissioning meeting on Wednesday.  

Action VA 
 

In response to a question from Bryan Naylor it was agreed by Vanessa 
Andrea that she would liaise with him directly on the issue of the homeless 
night shelter.  
 

Action:  VA 
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Bryan Naylor commented that the issue of vulnerable people having to call 
first thing in the morning needed urgent attention.  He also expressed 
concerns that GPs were prioritising care plan appointments for which they 
were paid extra.  Julie Sands confirmed that his concern was widely shared 
with regard to patients having to call at 08.00am to book an appointment.  
Vanessa Andrea added that the best way to address this issue was via the 
patient participation groups as GPs were able to decide how they managed 
their services.  She also added that there was no correlation between care 
plan appointments and getting to see a GP. 
 
Councillor Vaughan stated that the survey was positive although the issue of 
same day appointments was frustrating for people. He added that the 
influence of patient participation groups was key to finding solutions. He also 
added that the take up of extended hours services had also been successful 
and that the issues raised by the Neighbourhood Health Forum around 
communications were important to respond to. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

68. LEARNING POINTS FROM THE FLU SEASON 2015-16  
 
Vanessa Andrea introduced and summarised the report.  She stated the key 
areas of success which were with children and pregnant women and that the 
CLCH had won the most improved award in the national Flu fighters 
category.  
 
Councillor Brown commented well done for the improvements but expressed 
concerns on some very poor figures especially with reference to the Imperial 
and he stated that more improvement was necessary. Vanessa Andrea 
agreed it was disappointing in other areas and stated she would liaise with 
the Imperial. She added that the press backlash was unhelpful and the fact 
there was no outbreak was a factor in the figures. She also asked the PAC to 
write a letter to NHS England to ask them to allow pharmacists to be 
permitted to administer the children’s flu vaccine.  This was agreed by the 
Committee.  
 

Action  Health PAC 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Carlebach it was confirmed by 
Vanessa Andrea that there was no contract in hospitals and again asked the 
PAC write a letter to NHS England. It was agreed.  
 

Action Health PAC 
 
Vanessa Andrea expressed her thanks to Dr Sarah Wallace for her great 
work and also introduced Lucy Rumbellow who would be picking up the 
reins.  
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The Chair Councillor Vaughan expressed gratitude for the improvements but 
also was keen to see further improvements. He added it that it was good to 
see that in comparison to the London figures that Hammersmith and Fulham 
were bucking the trend in some areas. He also stated it was an excellent 
paper very clear and pro-active. He confirmed that the Committee were happy 
to write to NHS England to ask them to allow pharmacists to be permitted to 
administer the children’s flu vaccine and that a letter to the Imperial was also 
necessary.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 

 
 

69. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Chair Councillor Vaughan confirmed that the work programme was not 
complete yet and still in draft format. He also confirmed that reports on 
vaccinations and the like minded strategy would be on the agenda for the 
next meeting. 
 

70. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 14 June 2016.  
 

71. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Councillor Carlebach expressed his concern on behalf of the Committee for 
Sue Perrin who usually clerked this meeting and was currently very unwell. 
He wished her a complete recovery and a return to good health.  
 

 
Meeting started: 7.05 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.58 pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Kayode Adewumi 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2499 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 8



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
HEALTH, ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SOCIAL 

INCLUSION POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

14TH JUNE 2016 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2016/17, APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR AND TERMS 
OF REFERENCE 
 

Report of the Director of Law – Tasnim Shawkat 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Information 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Tasnim Shawkat - Director of Law  
 

Report Author: Kayode Adewumi – Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny 

Contact Details: Tel: 020 8753 2499 
Email – kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. This report sets out the new membership of this Committee and its terms 

of reference, as agreed at the Annual Council on 18 May 2016.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. The Committee is asked to note its membership and terms of reference. 
 

2.2. To appoint a Vice-chair for the 2016/2017 municipal year. 
 

3. INTRODUCTION  

3.1. The Council agreed the membership and terms of reference at the Annual 
Council Meeting held on 18 May 2016.  

 
4. MEMBERSHIP 

4.1. The membership of this committee is as follows: 
 

Councillor Rory Vaughan (Chair), Councillor Hannah Barlow 
Councillor Elaine Chumnery, Councillor Andrew Brown 
Councillor Joe Carlebach 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



5. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

5.1. Policy & Accountability Committees (PACs) will develop key policies for the 
Council on behalf of and with residents and community groups and hold the 
Executive to account.   
 

5.2. All PACs will discharge the relevant statutory functions within the scope of the 
Committee.  
 

5.3. All PACs will have the following key responsibilities:  

 To hold the Cabinet to account 

 To be a critical friend to the Cabinet and to challenge the assumptions 
behind the policies and actions of the Council and other local service 
providers 

 To amplify the voice and concerns of local residents and to give 
residents a mechanism to comment on, participate in and determine 
Council policy 

 To improve the Council’s services by listening to residents and user 
groups 

 To scrutinise decisions made by partner organisations in the interest of 
the residents of the Borough 

 To be independent of party politics and ensure an informed evidence-
based approach to policy development  

 
5.4 PACs may also co-opt non-voting additional members to ensure residents and 

users’ groups are fully represented.  Only statutory co-optees will have voting 
rights.  All co-opted members will be able to participate fully in all meetings 
and have the same access to information as elected members.  

 
5.5 Each PAC will maintain a work programme of policies and issues identified by 

the PAC members to be investigated, analysed and understood prior to 
making recommendations to decision-makers. PACs may receive evidence 
from experts and user groups either in writing in advance or verbally at 
meetings.  

 
5.6 All PACs may compel Council officers and Executive members to attend 

meetings as required and can expect to receive written evidence as requested.  
 
5.7 Where appropriate, PAC members may conduct research outside of formal 

meetings and make site visits as required.  
 
5.8 When considering major cross-cutting issues that impact upon the work of 

more than one PAC, PACs may meet concurrently to receive evidence in a 
joint session. Following such meetings, reports may be published as joint 
reports or as separate responses. Alternatively, for major cross-cutting issues 
that impact the work of more than one PAC or require detailed attention, PACs 
may appoint sub-committees or task groups to examine the particular issue.  

 
5.9 Overview and Scrutiny Committees will be known in Hammersmith & 

Fulham as the PACs. 

Page 10



 
BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT - None 

 

HEALTH, ADULT SOCIAL CARE & SOCIAL INCLUSION POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE  

 

Members: 
Five voting councillors 

Quorum: 
Three Members of the Committee 
 

Political proportionality: 
3 Administration members  
 
2 Opposition members.   

Co-opted Members: 
 
Non-statutory without voting rights: 
 

 
Principal Functions 

 
All the powers of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee as set out in section 
21 of the Local Government Act 2000 and Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007.  
 

 To discharge functions under the Health and Social Care Act 2001 

 To discharge any functions under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 
and any subsequent regulations  

 To develop policy within the scope of the Committee and make 
recommendations to the Cabinet 

 Monitor the administration and spending in services within its scope 

 To review the impact of decisions and policies implemented by the 
Council  

 Lead responsibility for scrutinising the relevant Cabinet Members(s). 
 
Scope: 

 

 health of both children and adults (including public health)  

 the provision, maintenance and improvement of primary and acute 
NHS services in the borough 

 the provision of mental health services in the borough 

 adult social care services in the borough, including the exercise of 
statutory responsibilities in relation to the scrutiny of health as set out 
in Article 6 and also the voluntary and community sector 

 the Council’s equalities and diversity programmes and support for 
vulnerable groups. 

 Council and other out-of-school services for youth in the Borough  

 the Council’s Voluntary Sector strategy 

 increasing access to opportunity in all aspects of social and economic 
life in the borough 

 other policies and initiatives supporting social inclusion in the borough 

 any other matter allocated by the Finance & Delivery PAC 

Page 11



1 
 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. Addressing the causes and impact of Food Poverty is a key priority for the 
Administration.  The LBHF Food Poverty Action Plan has been updated and includes  
a number of actions to take this agenda forward (appendix 1).  
 

1.2. This report outlines progress on addressing food poverty in Hammersmith & Fulham.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. The Health, Adult Social Care and Social Inclusion Policy & Accountability is invited 
to comment on the contents of this update report.  

 
 

3. UPDATES ON THE ACTION PLAN 

3.1. Funding to H&F Food bank (HFFB) commenced in 2015, and a new site in 
Bloemfontein Road provided from LBHF to enable HFFB to more easily support 
residents from the north of the borough.  

3.2. Renovation works to the property were provided by AMEY, the council’s main 
contractor for non residential repairs and maintenance work, under their Corporate 
Social Responsibility programme.  “The Hub @ 75” was officially launched on 14th 
March 2016.   Food Bank at the Hub is open Mondays 12:30 – 3:00, Wednesdays 
10:00 – 12:30 and Saturdays 10:00 – 12:00. 

3.3. Since opening, twenty-seven volunteers regularly give their time to support food 
bank sessions and other activities held at The Hub. Volunteers give approximately 
67.5 hours per week to ensure the smooth running of HFFB operations which take 
place at the Hub. In addition, Eleven dedicated volunteer bakers ensure home baked 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
HEALTH, ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SOCIAL 

INCLUSION POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY 
COMMITTEE 

 
14 June 2016 

 

 

ADDRESSING FOOD POVERTY IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Social Inclusion 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Policy & Accountability Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Kim Dero  
 

Report Author: Sue Spiller 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2483  E-mail: sue.spiller@lbhf.gov.uk 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

goods are available for people attending all Food Bank sessions.  During the first two 
months the new Hub volunteer team were assisted by three experienced HFFB 
volunteers to supervise and support the training of new volunteers.   

3.4. Between 24th February and 18th May 2016, 986 people have received food parcels 
from HFFB’s three Foodbank Centres. Of these, 215 people (adults and children) 
redeemed their vouchers at the Hub during 31 sessions held since opening.   

3.5. A total of 367 people (adults and children) lived in nearby wards, as detailed below: 

 Wormholt and White City: 174 people (108 adults, 66 children) 

 Askew: 87 people (62 adults, 25 children)  

 College Park and Old Oak: 28 people (17 adults, 11 children) 

 Shepherd’s Bush Green: 78 people (61 adults, 17 children) 

3.6. Feedback from residents and organisations working with H&F Food Bank is 
consistently high:  

“I have taken several of my patients there myself or indeed collected the food on 

their behalf, due to Mental Health Crisis’; the staff at this venue could not be any 
more welcoming, gentle and courteous to my patients, if they tried.  Thank you so 
much for the amazing support to my patients, who can tend to be a little bit different 
from housed clients”. 

HFFB received this feedback recently from a client. He described himself as living in 
a “world of shame” and that the volunteers he met were, “some of the most 
welcoming and nicest people I have ever met”.  

Another client said that when she arrived: “I was exhausted and I wanted to sit for a 
while” and went on to explain that, “I was put at ease by everyone I spoke to - I don’t 
feel the staff could have done any more for me”. When asked how she felt as she 
was leaving she said, “I felt very good about myself knowing there was food in the 
house”. 

3.7  HFFB have hosted 11 coffee mornings where the local community can find out more 
about what’s on offer at the Hub and HFFB, as well as join them for a hot drink and a 
snack. People of all ages come to these mornings for many reasons including using 
HFFB IT equipment to apply for jobs, search for and print new recipes and get 
cooking advice, signposting, or simply to enjoy the company of others while their 
children play with toys. A number of older people are visiting regularly. Due to the 
size of the space, visitors at these sessions tend to talk to each other. 

3.8  H&F Community Law Centre have started offering Housing Advice drop in sessions 
on Tuesday mornings between 10:00 and 12:00. Three sessions have been provided 
so far  and 4 people have benefitted from this service. H&F Law Centre are currently 
recruiting a new member of staff so, until that time, HFFB are hosting a second drop 
in session for the community, during which different agencies may visit. 

3.9  HFFB is currently partnering with the Big Local and Mitie (the LBHF repairs and 
maintenance provider for residential properties) to run an Employability Scheme 
every Thursday morning between 10:00 and 13:00 for an initial six months, with a 
three month review planned. During the first session held on 19th May, the 
employment adviser met two people from the local community on a one to one basis 
to discuss employment options. 

Page 13



3 
 

3.10 The Big Local have been using the Hub for job support sessions, trustee meetings 
and community meetings for the W12 Festival. 

 

4. Advice At Food Bank 

4.1. HFCAB and HFFB identified a need for access to advice and casework support in 
the same place as the local food bank.  The CAB submitted a funding proposal to the 
Cabinet Member for Social Inclusion which was agreed in March 2015, with funding 
agreed of £45k per financial year. 

4.2. The Cabinet Member for Social Inclusion has recently agreed the renewal of this 
contract until March 2018 at an increased level of £60,000 per financial year.  This 
increase is to enable a second full time advice worker to be recruited, along with 
£30,000 provided by The Trussell Trust who also recognise the value of this service 
being available to HFFB clients.  

4.3. During the last 9 months, 165 individuals have been supported (43 disabled people), 
and a total of £95,166 of additional benefits income secured as a direct result of the 
service, and evidence suggests that the on the whole, the users referred to the CAB 
service have highly complex issues that need comprehensive casework support.  

4.4. HFFB volunteers introduce HFFB users to the CAB service and carry out an initial 
triage of the underlying issues that caused the need to attend the Food Bank.  

 
5. LONDON FOOD POVERTY SURVEY 2016  

4.1  The London Food Poverty Campaign has recently requested all London authorities to 
complete the 2016 London Food Poverty Survey.  The LBHF response helped to 
identify ideas that might be developed further in Hammersmith & Fulham:  

Rose Vouchers 

4.2  The Rose Vouchers for Fruit & Veg is an Alexandra Rose Charity project designed an 
delivered in partnership with Food Matters. 

4.3  The Rose Vouchers for Fruit & Veg Project helps parents with young children on low 
incomes to buy fresh fruit and vegetables while developing the skills and confidence 
to give their families the healthiest start. 

4.4  Rose Vouchers are worth £3 per child every week (double if the child is under one 
year of age). Vouchers can only be redeemed at markets that sell fresh fruit and 
vegetables. This means that the project not only helps young families but also 
supports local markets – maintaining their position as sources of healthy low-cost 
food in areas that often suffer from poor food access. By locating the Rose Voucher 
registration and distribution at children’s centres the scheme also supports 
participants’ engagement with existing activities focused on health and wellbeing. 

How it works:  

4.5  Eligibility for Rose Vouchers is based on assessments undertaken by the children’s 
centres. Families have to be receiving, or be eligible for, the Healthy Start voucher 
scheme for pregnant women and families in receipt of benefits.  

4.6  The children’s centre staff recruit those families which most stand to benefit because 
of their susceptibility to food poverty, dietary related health issues or other risk 
factors. 

Page 14

http://www.sustainweb.org/foodpoverty/london/


4 
 

4.7  Rose Vouchers provide a cash equivalent that can only be spent on fresh fruit and 
vegetables at participating retailers including street markets, fruit and veg stalls and 
veg box schemes. 

4.8  The families collect their Rose Vouchers at their local children’s centre. This 
encourages them to use other health and wellbeing activities that are on offer, such 
as breastfeeding support, weaning workshops and play groups. 

4.9  There are also cook and taste sessions, to develop skills and confidence around food 
and cooking. Utilising existing local resources, the Rose Vouchers project is an 
asset-based approach that develops local partnerships to provide the range of 
support needed to help families lead healthier lives. 

4.10 Benefits to residents: 

 an increase in the amount and variety of fruit and vegetables consumed by 
participating families, both children and adults. 

 It has helped support positive behaviour change, resulting in increased numbers 
of meals being cooked from scratch and a decrease in the number of ready meals 
purchased.  

 Families are also spending more on fruit and vegetables as a percentage of their 
budgets. 

 Families are improving their diet because of the skills and confidence to cook from 
scratch which they gain from cook and taste sessions. 

4.11 Benefits to the local economy 

 Traders report increased takings, as people spend more money in the market in 
addition to using their Rose Vouchers. 

 Health and wellbeing: Families talk about feeling healthier and happier as a result 
of the project. They sometimes identify specific health benefits. 

 Food Poverty: Participants say the extra spending power makes them feel more 
relaxed about allowing free access to food at home and more confident about 
experimenting with new foods. 

4.12 The project is currently being delivered in the London boroughs of Hackney and 
Greenwich, and Lambeth as part of that borough’s status as a Food Flagship.   

4.13 Alexandra Rose Charity wants to expand this project and is keen to hear from 
potential partners who would like to bring Rose Vouchers to their local community. 

4.14 Alexandra Rose is particularly keen to work with public health bodies, local markets, 
food access projects and other voluntary and private sector partners to help give 
families the best possible start in life. 

4.15 Officers recommend that active consideration be given to supporting the provision of 
Rose Vouchers in LBHF, in partnership with HFFB and local Children’s Centres.  

 

5.  Mapping the provision of surplus foods 

5.1  The LBHF Community Investment Team has been researching what local 
supermarkets do with their unsold food, and whether they distribute this to local 
charities and organisations.  

Page 15



5 
 

5.2  The team has contacted all local supermarkets to query whether they have a 
permanent HFFB collection point, and whether they donate unsold food to other 
organisations.  The responses so far received are summarised below: 

name address 

Permanent 
HFFB 
collection 
point (y/n) 

other orgs donated to 

Budgens Stores 57-59 Parsons Green Lane   Not yet replied 

Iceland 111-117 King Street no 
company policy all unsold/unwanted food goes 
to waste 

Marks and 
Spencer 

King Street yes all to HFFB 

M&S Simply Food 171 Talgarth Road no 
very small store - reduce prices near end of 
day - all is sold 

M&S Simply Food Great West Road   Not yet replied 

Morrisons 1-3 The Links no Donated to City Harvest 

Pret-a-Manger King Street no Pret Foundation 

Sainsburys 49-63 King Street   Not yet replied 

Sainsburys local 179 Fulham Palace Road no 
food is recycled into animal food. Any excess is 
disposed of by Biffa 

Sainsburys 
Fulham Broadway Retail 
Centre 

  Not yet replied 

Sainsburys local Bloemfontein Road no  
bakery goods are returned to the depot. Other 
foods are disposed of 

Sainsburys local 164 Uxbridge Road no  
bakery goods are returned to the depot. Other 
foods are disposed of 

Sainsburys local 167-181 Askew Road no  
store closes at 11 and price is reduced one 
hour before therefore not much left over. Any 
that is left over is disposed of 

Sainsburys local 54 Goldhawk Road no  
food is recycled into animal food. Any excess is 
disposed of by Biffa 

Starbucks 38 King Street   all food disposed of - organically 

Tesco 180 Shepherds Bush Road yes not at present 

Tesco 100a Cromwell Road   Not at present 

Tesco 601 Kings Road   Not at present 

Tesco 327 King Street   Not at present 

Tesco 
Units 13-16 Broadway 
Shopping Centre 

yes 
HFFB. Picked up every day. Any that is not 
given to HFFB is sent to head office 

Tesco Express BBC Media Centre No 

all unsold/unwanted food goes to waste. There 
is a scheme in the pipeline where the food will 
be given to charity - this is to happen sometime 
in the future  

Tesco White 
Horse 

31 Uxbridge Road   Not yet replied 

Tesco 49 Goldhawk Road no 
none. All unsold/unwanted food is sent back to 
warehouse 

Waitrose 
201-207 Fulham Palace 
Road 

  Not yet replied 

Waitrose 402 North End Road yes 
Not at present, there was an organisation that 
collected, however they pulled out 

Waitrose Ariel Way, Shepherds Bush yes no 

Co-operative North End Road   Not yet replied 

 

Page 16



6 
 

5.3  The responses are so far somewhat disappointing – very few of the borough’s 
supermarkets appear to be actively engaging with the Food Poverty agenda.  This 
will have a direct impact on the delivery of the proposed action in the Food Poverty 
Action Plan – to contact groups who receive food donations from local supermarkets. 

5.4  However, Community Investment has made contact with an organisation called Fare 
Share, who are initiating a project with Tescos: 

 

We’re currently introducing a new initiative in the London region that connects charities 
with good quality, unsold food at their local Tesco store for free. 

We use simple technology, provided by our partner FoodCloud, to match charities and 
community groups directly with a local Tesco store that has unsold food. By all working 
together we cut down on waste, save organisations money and help provide nutritious 
meals to people in need. 

How does it work? 

1.  The charity/organisation nominates one or more evenings per week that they are 
available to collect surplus food from their local store.  

2.  On those evenings at 7:30pm, they will be notified via text that their donation is 
available for collection. 

3.  The fresh surplus food will be packaged and available for collection from the store 
from 8:30pm. Organisations are not obliged to take everything that is available. 

 

At this initial stage the food available is ambient food: mainly bread/baked goods, fruit 
and veg. Pilots are being run elsewhere with chilled food (e.g. meat and dairy) as well 
with a view to introducing this across the board at a later stage. 

Can my organisation receive food? 

In order to receive food, your organisation needs to be equipped to receive, store, 
prepare and serve foods safely. Charities and community groups do not need to create 
meals and they can distribute food to vulnerable people in the form of food parcels so 
long as they also provide another type of service (e.g. signposting different advice 

Page 17



7 
 

services). Charities and community groups will be visited by FareShare to make sure 
that they use the food in accordance with food safety and handling guidelines 

5.5  Fare Share are keen to stimulate the project in LBHF, which could offer a number of 
local organisations food items to support their most vulnerable clients who are at risk 
of food poverty.  

5.6  Fare Share also undertakes food collection events, usually twice a year, where they 
collect items for HFFB.  

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000,  

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

None 
 

Appendices: 
Appendix 1: H&F Food Poverty Updated Action Plan 

Page 18



1 

 

 

Action Comments Lead officer/department Timescale 

1. All LBHF front line 
services to be HFFB 
Voucher Partners 

 

 HFFB will be invited to report on 
referrals made by council services in 
order to identify where an 
improvement in referral rates might 
be achieved.  

 HFFB to be offered the opportunity to 
attend team/divisional meetings 
where appropriate to inform/train 
teams on HFFB Voucher process 
and requirements 

 ASC: Liz Bruce,  

 ChS: Mike Potter 

 ELRS: Sue Harris 

 HRD: Glendine Shepherd 

 HF Food Bank 
 

Details of team 
managers to be 
provided by end 
March 2015.  
 
May 16: List 
provided.  HFFB to 
be asked to provide 
analysis on take-up 
by partners 

2. Encourage and support 
appropriate 
commissioned services to 
become HFFB Voucher 
Partners 

 

 Children’s Services (including 
schools and nurseries), Day Care 
and Home Care providers to be 
encouraged to become HFFB 
Voucher Partners 

 ASC: Paul Rackham 

 ChS, Mike Potter 

 ELRS: Sue Harris 

 3rd Sector: Sue Spiller 

 HF Food Bank 

Details of external 
service provider 
contacts to be 
provided to HFFB by 
April 15. 
 
See above 

3. Encourage external 
agencies to support the 
delivery of Food Banks 

 

 External agencies to be approached 
with a view to becoming HFFB 
Voucher Partners and/or raise 
awareness of the need to signpost 
individuals to HF Voucher Partners in 
the borough. 

 Work with health providers to 
enhance and encourage signposting 
to services addressing food poverty 
and food poverty crisis.   

 Support organisations delivering 
services which address food poverty 
to build relationships with other 
businesses in the borough, including 

 3rd sector: Sue Spiller 

 HF Food Bank 

 Health Services: tbc 

 Public Health: Pete 
Westmore 

 HRD: Antonia 
Hollingsworth 

 ELRS: David Page 

Information 
distributed to 3rd 
sector orgs via Sobus 
by end of March 2015 
 
Publicity to GP 
forum/CCG by March 
2015 
 
Info to business 
contacts by March 
2015 
Information widely 
distributed during 

P
age 19



2 

 

facilitating introductions to other 
potential supporters, including local 
football clubs, emergency services 
etc.   

2015, though repeat 
of the message is 
required.  
 
Info sent out in 
School Zone before 
summer holidays 
2015.  Same to be 
done prior to summer 
hols 2016 

4. Support the broader 
provision of support to 
address low income and 
food poverty 

 

 Cabinet Member to consider project 
proposal and funding request to 
deliver additional advice and support 
to those facing food poverty crisis, 
i.e. an advice and support worker 
placed at the Food Bank. 

Sue Spiller CM Decision report 
by April 2015 
 
Funding to CAB for 
advice at Foodbank 
commenced 2015.  

5. Promote HF Food Bank to 
local residents 
 

 Information to be posted on the 
Council’s website and circulated via 
other external communications to 
promote Food Bank services to local 
residents and H&F staff. 

 Information will be targeted at areas 
with high levels of deprivation. 

HF Food Bank 
Louise Raisey, 
Communications 

Information on Food 
Bank on the Council’s 
website by end of 
February 2015.   
 
Number of articles 
published.  Guardian 
articles in January 
and February 2016. 
Opening of W12 
centre will include 
targeted info to local 
resdients.   
 
Leaflet published by 
Sulgrave Club.  Have 
invited SC to bid for 

P
age 20



3 

 

FTSG to print more 
copies. Not yet 
actioned by SC. 

6. Leading by example  HFFB collection points to be offered 
in Hammersmith Town Hall, Park 
View Health Centre, 145 King Street 
and all area housing offices.   

 The Council will promote and 
encourage staff and residents to 
donate food items to HFFB via these 
collection points. 

HF Food Bank – collection 
containers 
 
Louise Raisey – info on 
Council’s website 
 
TTS to identify points for Food 
Bank collection containers 

April 2015 
 
Collection point in 
HTH completed.  
Collection points 
elsewhere subject to 
suitability of the site. 
Further internal 
publicity required.   

7. Support the continued 
development of HF Food 
Bank 

 

 Support HFFB to identify and secure 
appropriate storage premises in the 
north of the borough. 

 Identify additional support towards 
HFFB transport needs. 

 Support targeted information to local 
residents particularly in areas of 
highest deprivation in the borough, 
and consider financial support in 
times of high need when HFFB food 
supplies may not meet demand. 

TTS: Marcus Perry 
HF Food Bank 
3SIF/FCS: Sue Spiller 
Communications: Louise 
Raisey 
 
 

Premises identified at 
75 Bloemfontein Rd.  
Negotiating with 
HRD, re. length of 
rent free period.  
Likely HFFB will 
require grant funding 
for premises refit and 
redecoration.  
Decision report to be 
submitted once costs 
provided by HFFB.  
 
Works completed 4th 
Feb 2015, lease 
completed 18th Feb 
2016.  Formal 
opening March 16.  

8. Support the evidence base 
for Food Bank and other 
services which address 

 Dependent on what info can be 
provided by HF Food Bank/Trussell 
Trust, LBHF to provide data analysis 

FCS: Lee Fitzjohn 
H&F Food Bank 

Research project with 
Trussell Trust being 
explored.   

P
age 21



4 

 

and mitigate low income 
and food poverty:  

support in order for HFFB and 
broader services, addressing low 
income and resultant food poverty, to 
better understand the impact of their 
services, where services could or 
should be targeted better and the 
impact on broader socio economic 
measures. 

9. Publicise support available 
to people experiencing 
Food Poverty 

 Contact major retailers – who do you 
donate items to 
 

 Contact recipients, and ask other 
local orgs – do you provide café, 
food parcels or other support to 
individuals experiencing Food 
Poverty crisis.   
 

 Aim to publish info on help available 
on council website – possibly 
updated version of Sulgrave Club 
leaflet. 

Sue Spiller, by June 16 
 
 
Community Investment: by 
June 16 
 
 
 
 
Community 
Investment/Communications 
team, by July 16 

On track 
 
 
Info request to be 
circulated via CIT and 
Sobus end of May 
2016. 
 
 
Awaiting Sulgrave 
Club to respond. 

10. Support development of 
local Rose Voucher 
scheme 

 Initiate contact with Alexander Rose 
charity to discuss how LBHF can 
support this initiative locally 

Sue Spiller 
HFFB 

By July 2016 

 

P
age 22



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
HEALTH, ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SOCIAL 

INCLUSION POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

14TH JUNE 2016 
 

 

DRAFT CLCH’S QUALITY ACCOUNT FOR 2015-16 
 

Executive Director for Adult Social Care and Health - Liz Bruce 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Liz Bruce – Executive Director for Adult Social Care and Health 
 

Report Author: Kayode Adewumi – Head of 
Governanc and Scrutiny 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2499 
Email – kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. The attached report has been prepared by the Central London Community 

Healthcare NHS Trust (CLCH).  The Quality Account is a summary of their 
performance in the last year in relation to their quality priorities and national 
requirements.   They have incorporated feedback from their clinical teams 
this year showing how they have changed the way they deliver care in order 
to improve the quality of our services.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. The Committee is invited to submit any formal comments on the draft 

CLCH’s quality account for 2015-16 to the Trust.  
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. Each local authority is required to provide formal comments on the draft 
CLCH’s quality account. 
 

4. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT -None 
 
Report Contact Officer: Kate Wilkins – Assistant Head of Quality (Interim), 
Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust, 6th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 
Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP, (t) 0207 798 1308, Email kate.wilkins@clch.nhs.uk 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7

mailto:kate.wilkins@clch.nhs.uk


  Page 1 of 71 
 

 

CLCH QUALITY ACCOUNT 2015 – 16  
 

CONTENTS PAGE  

 

ABOUT OUR QUALITY ACCOUNT  
About CLCH  
 
Statements    
Chief Executive  
Chair of Quality Committee 
 
 

LOOKING BACK AT QUALITY IN 2015 -16  
 
Progress against our three year quality strategy 

 

Trust quality projects and initiatives  

 
Progress against the agreed 2015-16 quality priorities  
 
 

LOOKING FORWARD   
 
Our priorities for quality improvement for 2016 – 17  
 
Who did we involve? 
 

REVIEW OF QUALITY PERFORMANCE – REQUIRED INFORMATION 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
CQUINS:  Use of the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation CQUIN framework  
Data quality, NHS number and general medical practice code validity, clinical coding error 
rate, information governance toolkit and review of services 
Review of services  
NHS England – Prescribed information  
Staff survey results – key scores 26 and 27.  
Statements from our local overview and scrutiny committees, clinical commissioning groups 
and Healthwatch.  
 

FEEDBACK AND FURTHER INFORMATION  
How to feedback 
Useful information 
Glossary 

APPENDICES  
 
APPENDIX 1  Complaints and compliments annual report    

Page 24



  Page 2 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY 

Offender Health – Seacole Service 

 

When I first came to Seacole*, I was unsure about the activities. They gave me a list of all the 

activities and I chose all of them, just to get out of the cell. I got very fond of the lead girl from the 

‘Only Connect’ charity at Seacole. She was an inspiration as I am interested in carry on doing the 

same charity when I leave prison.  They allow me to express myself. The activity they do was new to 

me and I very much enjoyed it. It made me come out of myself as a person.  

 

As a criminal person I will never be in front of the camera. It was hard for me to speak in front of 

other people, but they encouraged me to take centre stage to properly express myself. In the group, 

I was taught presentation skills and acting skills, things that I was always wanted to do but was too 

shy. The highlight of the course was to give a presentation in front of audience. They arranged 

executives from John Lewis to come and watch me as I give my presentation. Their reaction was very 

good and I felt elated and overwhelmed. I have achieved something that was foreign to me. It was 

an amazing experience. 

 

I always led my life by my own moral code and not the codes set by society, but the experience with 

the centre made me feel positive about joining society. Therefore, I decided to stay in touch with the 

charity and carry on working with Only Connect. In my opinion, ‘the devil finds time for idle themes’. 

The few hours I spent in the centre, made me forget that I am in prison. I regret the time was limited 

here. I hope it will expand and be promoted for a longer time for other prisoners. The classes are 

now getting bigger and prisoners are spreading the word around. I suggest spreading the word 

among prisoners and improving communication between governors and prisoners to encourage 

them to join the Seacole centre. And to put more leaflets, so people can learn more about the 

activities at Seacole.  

The team were very professionals and welcoming and I felt like in ‘my true comfort zone’.  I was 

laughing constantly. The way that the class is set up was amazing. I was exposing more of myself and 

I discovered more skills I didn’t know I had before. 

 

Leaning from this story 

This story illustrates the positive difference that the Seacole service can make and suggests that 

there is a need for more awareness about this service within the prison environment. 

In response to this feedback, a leaflet has been developed by the staff within offender health, so 

people can learn more about the role of the Seacole service and the sort of activities that are 

offered. 

 

*The Seacole centre is based within HMP Wormwood scrubs; interventions and therapies are run 
from the centre with the aim of improving prisoners’ awareness, life planning skills and self-esteem.  

  

Page 25



  Page 3 of 71 
 

 

ABOUT OUR QUALITY ACCOUNT  

 

Welcome to the Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust (CLCH) Quality Account for 

2015/16. The Quality Account is a summary of our performance in the last year in relation to our 

quality priorities and national requirements.  We have incorporated feedback from our clinical teams 

this year showing how they have changed the way they deliver care in order to improve the quality 

of our services.  

 

What is a Quality Account?  

A Quality Account is an annual report that providers of NHS healthcare services must publish to 

inform the public of the quality of the services they provide. This is so you know more about our 

commitment to provide you with the best quality healthcare services. It also encourages us to focus 

on service quality and helps us find ways to continually improve.  

 

Why has CLCH produced a Quality Account?  

CLCH is a community healthcare provider, providing healthcare to people in their homes and the 

local community and therefore we are statutorily required to publish a Quality Account. This is the 

fourth year that we have done so.  

 

What does the CLCH Quality Account include?  

Over the last year we have collected a lot of information on the quality of all of our services within 

the three areas of quality defined by the Department of Health: safety, clinical effectiveness and 

patient experience. We have used the information to look at how well we have performed over the 

past year (2015/16) and to identify where we could improve over the next year, and we have 

defined three main priorities for improvement.  

 

Patient stories have been interspersed throughout the account to demonstrate how quality makes a 

difference to them as well as informing us of what we do well and where we might improve.  Also 

incorporated into the account are examples of quality put into practice within our services.  

 

Developing the Quality Priorities 2016/17 

The development of the Trust’s Quality Account and Quality Priorities has been done in consultation 

with a variety of internal and external stakeholders. To make sure that our priorities matched those 

of our patients, carers, partners and commissioners and the wider public, we invited a range of 

individuals and groups to contribute to our Quality Account. We also have a Quality Stakeholder 

Reference Group (QSRG), with representatives from Healthwatch and local authority Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees (OSCs) which provided comments and feedback. More detailed information 

regarding the response to the consultation can be found at the end of the section on our quality 

priorities for 2016/17. 

 

  

Page 26



  Page 4 of 71 
 

 

How can I get involved now and in future?  

At the end of this document you will find details of how to let us know what you think of our Quality 

Account, what we can improve on and how you can be involved in developing the report for next 

year.  

 

If you would like to receive a printed copy of the CLCH Quality Account, please contact us  

via e-mail communications@clch.nhs.uk or telephone 020 7798 1420 

 

 

ABOUT CLCH   

 

We provide health care in people’s own home and in over 400 community settings including GP 
practices, walk in centres (WiCs), school and early years centres. 
 
The full range of CLCH services includes:  

 Adult community nursing services – including 24 hour district nursing, community matrons and 
case management  

 Child and family services - including health visiting, school nursing, children’s community 
nursing teams, speech and language therapy,  blood disorders, and children’s occupational 
therapy 

 Rehabilitation and therapies - including physiotherapy, occupational therapy,  foot care, speech 
and language therapy, osteopathy  

 End of life care – for people with complex, substantial, ongoing needs caused by disability or 
chronic illness 

 Specialist services including offender health services – at HMP Wormwood Scrubs 

 Continuing care – services for older people who can no longer live independently due to a 
disability or chronic illness, or following hospital treatment  

 Specialist services – including elements of long term condition management (diabetes, heart 
failure, lung disease), community dental services, sexual health and contraceptive services, 
psychological therapies 

 Walk-in and urgent care centres – providing care for people with minor illnesses, minor injuries 
and providing a range of health promotion activities and advice 

 
Further and more detailed information will be made about our services in our annual report but if 
you would like more information now about our services please visit our website www.clch.nhs.uk 
 

 

CLCH map to be inserted  

  

Page 27

http://www.clch.nhs.uk/


  Page 5 of 71 
 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT  

It gives me great pleasure to introduce the Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust Quality 
Account. Over the year we have continued to strive to provide the highest standard of clinical care 
and ensure that our patients remain central to everything we do. The Quality Account contains many 
examples of our approach to quality and we will continue to focus on providing high quality services 
in the year ahead.  

At CLCH we have made a firm commitment through our quality strategy and patient and public 
engagement (PPE) strategy to keep patients at the heart of everything we do. Our three-year quality 
strategy entered its final year in 2015/16 and with the publication of our Quality Account this year 
we will also be publishing our new three-year quality strategy. Our board and staff are committed to 
providing quality healthcare for our patients and their families.  

Patients continue to tell us what they think of our services by taking part in our regular surveys. The 
results allow us to see if we are improving by comparing results to survey findings from previous 
years and also allowing us to compare our progress against other NHS Trusts. We want our patients 
and the public to play an active role in shaping their own care and treatment and in developing and 
redesigning our services especially as we develop our membership strategy. 

This year we were pleased to be one of a minority of trusts rated as good by the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) and welcomed the feedback we received in relation to how we are improving. 
Our progress against the CQC recommendations is contained in the account. I was also pleased to 
see that the Trust was one of only 18 Trusts to receive an outstanding rating for learning from 
incidents in the NHSI league table. This is the first year Trusts have been measured in this way and it 
will be a key objective for the Trust to remain in the top group of NHS Trusts. 

We also welcomed a number of new services to the Trust this year and in 2016 community services 
in both Harrow and Merton join us. 

Finally, I would also like to take this opportunity to thank our staff, who strive to continue to 
improve the quality of care they deliver, our patients for taking the time to give us feedback and our 
colleagues across health and social care for working with us to provide a comprehensive local 
service.  

The information contained in this document is an accurate reflection of our performance for the 
period covered by the report.  In particular I certify that the following mandatory data quality 
statements within the CLCH Quality account are accurate:  

The use of the NHS number (which measures the completeness of the data held on patients); 

The clinical coding error rate (which measures the accuracy of data recording)  

The use of the GP medical practice code and;  

The information quality and records management score (covering the quality of data systems and 
process within the organization)  

Electronic signature to be inserted   

 

add picture 

Page 28



  Page 6 of 71 
 

 

STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF THE QUALITY COMMITTEE  

 

As the Chair of the trust Quality Committee I am pleased with the progress the trust has made this 

year in relation to Quality and also our achievements against the objectives we set ourselves in the 

Quality Strategy. 

 

As well as gaining assurance through review and scrutiny of our key performance indicators; the 

Quality Committee has continued to receive a presentation each month from our clinical services 

which has included both staff and patients.  

 

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspected Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust 

from 7–10 April 2015 and undertook an unannounced inspection on 29 April 2015.  This was carried 

out as part of the CQC’s comprehensive inspection programme and included the following core 

services:  

 Community health inpatient services  
 Community adult and long-term conditions  
 Community end of life care  
 Community health services for children, young people and families  
 Urgent care centres.  
 Dentists  

We were pleased to be awarded a rating of “good” and as our Chief Executive has already said, are 
committed to improving in the areas the CQC highlighted and have already made substantial 
progress against their recommendations. 

The Quality Committee will monitor the Trusts new quality goals outlined in the quality strategy and 
the new priorities laid out in this account; we will also be ensuring that as the organisation expands 
that we maintain our track record on quality and safety. 

 

 

Electronic signature to be inserted  

Julia Bond, Non-Executive Director, Chair: Quality Committee 

 

Add picture 

  

Page 29



  Page 7 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY - Ruby Ward Inpatient Rehabilitation 

 
I came to Ruby Ward for rehabilitation from Northwick Park hospital after I had a stroke. I found my 
stay on Ruby ward was excellent and the attitude was excellent.   I was there over Christmas and it 
was one of the most sociable events without me having to do any work.  They arranged all these 
presents for every patient on the ward. They had cooked breakfast. They couldn’t have worked 
harder to make it a lovely day; naturally they must have been short staffed over Christmas. I was 
disappointed not to be at home as it was my granddaughter’s 21st birthday. They allowed us to have 
a celebration on the ward with no problems in the day room.  On Christmas my family came and I 
used the day room to have a celebration. They installed a TV on the ward before Christmas, it was on 
most of the time, but it was a disturbance most of the time.  It would be good if people had 
headphones.  All were able to watch the Queen’s speech.   
 
I found the staff on the ward sympathetic and encouraging, particularly the physios. I didn’t think it 
was enough physio, however from what there was it was good. For visitors it did take a very long 
time to get into the wards.  Sometimes you can stand waiting, waiting outside the door and no one 
opens the door. There was an altercation with a patient and staff on the bay however, it didn’t affect 
me, I became the spokesperson as I would press the bell for everyone as my bell was the only one 
working on the bay.  Staff were accommodating and didn’t brush us off as amateurs. They took note 
of the fact that I found it hard to sit in the wheelchair, so they did change the timings for my seating. 
Food however was an issue as I am lactose intolerant.  The person in charge of the kitchen on the 
ward used to go to great lengths to try and find something.  Sometimes she found it hard to get 
things in, so sometimes I had to ask family to bring in food from home.  
 
I would definitely recommend this service to friends and family.  I think my daughter has already 
done so, her friend was offered rehab and recommended she went to Edgware Community hospital, 
she said, “my Mother’s experience was really good there I would go if I were you”.  
 
I would speed up the change over from day staff to night staff on the ward.  A couple of times I was 
on the chair and I had to wait a while before I saw anyone from the night staff. I was ringing my bell 
and nothing happened.  I would put more staff on, as nurses were rushing and rushing all day.  There 
are not enough nurses. A 12-hour shift is a long time and they definitely need more staff. Training 
for my husband on how to use a rota stand would have been useful; He was there all day using it 
with no problem but were then told he couldn’t due to manual handling.  I understand you can’t do 
this because of health and safety however it ignores the reality as we need to do it at home anyway. 
My husband visited in the afternoon and in the evening for four months.  He could have helped 
many times.  
 
Learning from this story 

The learning from this story has led us to recruit an additional ward receptionist so that the doorbell 

can be answered more promptly reducing the time that people have to wait outside the ward when 

visiting. An audit of patient call bell response is taking place each week. Additional rehabilitation 

support workers have been recruited to the service so that more groups and activities can be 

provided for patients within the ward. A lactose free menu has been developed and menus will be 

laminated for patients to use. Staff are monitoring the sound level of the TV to ensure that it does 

not disturb others and the provision of earphones is being explored.  

Page 30



  Page 8 of 71 
 

 

LOOKING BACK - QUALITY IN 2015-16 
Progress against our 3-year  (2013 – 2016) Quality Strategy  

Quality Strategy: The Quality Strategy was created to provide a framework through which 

improvements in the services the Trust offers to patients can be focused and measured. Three 

campaigns were identified along with clear three year objectives, to focus the quality improvements 

the Trust wished to make. The three campaigns were:   

 

 Campaign one:      Positive patient experience;  

 Campaign two:      Preventing harm;  

 Campaign three:   Smart, effective care 

 

Within each of the campaigns a number of key work streams were put in place.  Progress against the 

priorities is described in the score card and explanation below.  

 

Quality Campaign Key Performance Indicator 
End of 
Year 

Year End 

  Target Actual 

A Positive Patient 
Experience 

Patients' Experience 
 

Caring & Responsive 
Services 

Proportion of patients who were treated with respect and 
dignity 

95.0 % 93.9 % 

Friends and family test - net promoter score 85.0 82.5 

Proportion of patients whose care was explained in an 
understandable way 

90.0 % 91.2 % 

Proportion of patients who were involved in planning their 
care 

80.0 % 80.3 % 

Proportion of patients rating their overall experience as good 
or excellent 

80.0 % 90.7 % 

Number of PREMS responses 1,600 1,759 

20% reduction in complaints related to poor communication 
and attitude from 2012/13 baseline 

35 38 

A Positive Patient 
Experience 

Patients' Complaints, 
Concerns & 

Compliments 
 

Caring & Responsive 
Services 

Number of compliments  - 492 

Proportion of patients' concerns (PALS) responded to within 5 
working days 

90.0 % 94.8 % 

Number of complaints received  - 148 

Proportion of complaints responded to within 25 days 90.0 % 100.0 % 

Proportion of complaints responded to within agreed deadline 100.0 % 100.0 % 

Proportion of complaints acknowledged within 3 working days 100.0 % 100.0 % 

Preventing Harm 
Incidents & Risk 

 
Safe Services 

Proportion of patient-related incidents that were harm free 54.0 % 73.8 % 

30% increase in harm free incidents from 2012/13 baseline 1,970 3,347 

50% reduction in medication incidents that caused harm from 
2012/13 baseline 

73 36 

50% reduction in falls incidents that caused harm from 
2012/13 baseline 

97 85 

Page 31



  Page 9 of 71 
 

 

50% reduction in CLCH acquired category 2-4 pressure ulcers 
from 2012/13 baseline 

212 416 

Zero tolerance of new (CLCH acquired) category 3 & 4 
pressure ulcers in bedded units 

0 8 

Proportion of external SIs with reports completed within 
deadline 

100.0 % 93.2 % 

Percentage of time bedded units achieving minimum staffing 
each month 

100 % 108 % 

Statutory and mandatory training compliance 90.00 % 88.28% 

Preventing Harm 
Prevalence (NHS Safety 

Thermometer) 
 

Safe Services 

Proportion of patients with harm free care 98.0 % 92.4 % 

Proportion of patients who did not have any NEW harms 98.0 % 97.5 % 

Proportion of patients who did not have a pressure ulcer 98.0 % 93.7 % 

Proportion of patients with Category 2 pressure ulcers (old) 2.0 % 2.7 % 

Proportion of patients with Category 3 pressure ulcers (old) 2.0 % 0.9 % 

Proportion of patients with Category 4 pressure ulcers (old) 2.0 % 1.6 % 

Proportion of patients with Category 2 pressure ulcers (new) 2.0 % 0.8 % 

Proportion of patients with Category 3 pressure ulcers (new) 2.0 % 0.2 % 

Proportion of patients with Category 4 pressure ulcers (new) 2.0 % 0.2 % 

Proportion of patients who did not have a fall 98.0 % 98.7 % 

Proportion of patients with no harm - falls 2.0 % 0.6 % 

Proportion of patients with low harm - falls 2.0 % 0.5 % 

Proportion of patients with moderate harm - falls 2.0 % 0.2 % 

Proportion of patients with severe harm - falls 2.0 % 0.0 % 

Proportion of patients who died - falls 2.0 % 0.0 % 

Proportion of patients who did not have a catheter associated 
UTI 

98.0 % 99.4 % 

Proportion of patients with a catheter associated UTI (old) 2.0 % 0.3 % 

Proportion of patients with a catheter associated UTI (new) 2.0 % 0.3 % 

Proportion of patients who did not have a venous 
thromboembolism 

98.0 % 99.8 % 

Smart, Effective Care 
 
 

Effective Services 

Standardised mortality ratio in bedded units 3.8 % 0.1 % 

Proportion of services capturing patients' clinical outcomes 100.0 % 100.0 % 

Proportion of patients who were satisfied with the wait for 
treatment 

80.0 % 78.1 % 

Proportion of patients reporting a positive Goal Attainment 
Score 

90.0 % 86.7 % 

Proportion of safety alerts due, and responded to, within 
deadline 

100.0 % 97.1 % 

 

Page 32



  Page 10 of 71 
 

 

POSITIVE PATIENT EXPERIENCE  

Patient Reported Experience Measures (PREMS)   

The Trust is committed to receiving feedback from as many patients as possible and from all groups 

that represent our patients’ diversity; to this end we use PREMS. We collect PREMS using a range of 

methods including electronic tablets, paper surveys, kiosks, comment cards and telephone 

interviews. We have tested a redesigned survey for people with learning disabilities. Each service has 

a patient experience engagement plan outlining how they will collect this data and how they will 

increase patient feedback. In areas where it is hard to garner feedback; the Trust is developing 

volunteers to support the process. The Trust is also adding a new question to the PREMs survey 

asking if patients were told how to complain and raise concerns.   

 

The Trust has consistently collected over 1600 surveys per month in 2015/16.   

Graph 1: Number of PREMS received  

 

Dignity & Respect 

Patients are asked if they feel they were treated with dignity and respect. The data described in 

graph 2 shows the proportion of patients who responded “yes definitely”. We have not met the 

target for the last quarter and continue to work with the Compassion in Care lead to improve this. 

Having analysed the narrative from patient feedback, there are no specific comments relating to 

privacy and dignity. However, there are some comments about patients feeling that there is a lack of 

continuity in care and a lack of information regarding who is caring for them which may be 

contributing to the score. This has been fedback to staff.  

 

Graph 2: Proportion of patients who reported that they were treated with dignity and respect.  

 

  

1500

1700

1900

2100

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

N
u

m
b

e
r 

re
ce

iv
e

d
 

2015/16 

90%

92%

94%

96%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 

2015/16 

Percentage Threshold

Page 33



  Page 11 of 71 
 

 

Friends & Family Test (FFT)  

In the FFT we ask patients how likely they would be to recommend our services to their friends and 

family. The score is calculated by subtracting the number of people who would not recommend the 

service from the number who would recommend it. This is measured according to national 

guidelines against a board target of 85. This was not met in February and March largely due to a high 

proportion of negative comments about the Walk in Centres; specifically waiting times and 

accessibility. The service is taking forward a number of actions to address this including a review of 

staffing levels to assist with the demand at peak times. 

NHS England (NHSE) now presents the percentage of people that would recommend the service 

(extremely likely and likely responses), and the percentage of people that would not recommend the 

service (unlikely and extremely unlikely responses) rather than using the net promoter score. NHSE 

considers this easier for patients to understand and fairer as it includes ‘likely’ responses which were 

previously excluded. The table below outlines how the Trust is performing using this approach. This 

method will be used in our 2016/17 reports.  

NHSE FFT presentation  

FFT  Base size Recommend % Not Recommend % 

February 2016  n=1929 90.2% 5.0% 

January 2016  n=1725 90.4% 5.3% 

December 2015  n=1939 91.2% 4.1% 

November 2015  n=1625 89.0% 5.7% 

October 2015  n=1804 87.1% 7.2% 

 
(Please note that February 2016 is the most up to date data available from NHSE at the time of 
writing the account).  
 
Graph 3: Number of patients who would recommend the service to their families and friends  

 

  

75

80

85

90

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Sc
o

re
 

2015/16 

Score Threshold

Page 34



  Page 12 of 71 
 

 

Overall Experience  

We ask patients to rate their overall experience of care. Graph 4 shows patients who said that their 

care was good or excellent. We have consistently and significantly exceeded the target.  

Graph 4: Proportion of patients who rated their overall experience as good or excellent 

 

Involvement in care  

We ask our patients how involved they have been in planning their own care. Graph 5 represents 

those patients who said that they were as involved as they wanted to be.  This target has been 

achieved for most of the year. However, there has been a decline in positive responses in the last 

quarter. Mobile devices are being rolled out and it is hoped that this will facilitate collaborative care 

planning in patients’ homes. The Patient Experience Group will also work with users to find out how 

they think this can be improved.  

Graph 5: Proportion of patients who were as involved in planning their care as they would like. 

 

Explaining Care  

We ask patients if their care was explained to them in a way they could understand, graph 6 shows 

those patients who said that it was. We have achieved or exceeded the target all year. 

Graph 6: Proportion of patients whose care was explained to them in an understandable way. 

 

75%

85%

95%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 

2015/16 
Percentage Threshold

70%

80%

90%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 

2015/16 
Percentage Threshold

88%

90%

92%

94%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 

2015/16 

Percentage Threshold

Page 35



  Page 13 of 71 
 

 

Complaints 

We categorise complaints as either simple or complex. This decision depends on the nature of the 

complaint and how difficult it is to investigate.  The national target requires NHS Trusts to respond to 

all complaints within a time limit agreed with the complainant. To drive quality, the CLCH Board has 

set the Trust a more challenging target of responding to 90% of simple complaints in 25 working day 

and 100% of complex complaints within the agreed timescale. All complaint targets have been 

achieved this month and all simple complaints have been responded to within 25 days for the whole 

of 2015/16.  

Graph 7: The number of complaints received 

 
 

Patient Advice & Liaison Service (PALS)  

We aim to resolve 90% of all PALS issues within 5 working days. This has been achieved for most of 

the year.  

Graph 8: The Number of PALs received 

 

Graph 9: The percentage of PALS issues resolved within five working days 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0
5

10
15
20
25

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

 

2015/16 

0

100

200

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb MarN
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
A

LS
 

2015/16 

70%

80%

90%

100%

110%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 r

e
so

lv
e

d
 

2015/16 

Percentage Threshold

Page 36



14 

 

PREVENTING HARM  

NHS Safety Thermometer 

The NHS safety thermometer is a national prevalence survey. It is conducted on one day each month 

when our nurses review all relevant patients to determine if they have suffered any harm as a result 

of their healthcare. The categories they review include VTE, catheter associated urinary tract 

infections (CAUTIs), falls, venous thromboembolism (VTE) and pressure ulcers. Their data is fed back 

to a national data base, which is used for comparison and benchmarking.  All data can be reviewed 

at www.safetythermometer.nhs.uk. The national target is that 96% of patients are harm free; this 

applies to the overall score as well as each individual category. The CLCH Board has set a more 

challenging target that 98% of patients are harm free.  

The limitations of prevalence data are well known, one day each month is unlikely to capture normal 

variations in occupancy, dependency and a variety of other factors, but it acts as a starting point for 

a more in depth analysis. A more reliable and robust picture can be gained by reviewing the 

incidence of harm over time. CLCH collects both types of data and uses the incidence analysis as 

necessary. Incidence data is collected as reports on the DATIX system.  

Harm Free Care  

We calculate the percentage of patients on the survey day that did not have any of the harms being 

monitored. This includes harms which occurred within CLCH (new harm) and those that occurred 

with other providers (old harms). The vast majority of patients suffer no harm at all. For the whole of 

2015/16 more than 96% of patients were free from any CLCH acquired harm. At the end of 2015/16 

more than 93% of our patients were free from any harm (including harms acquired with other 

providers).  

It is important to differentiate between all harms and new harms. New harms are those which 

occurred whilst the patient was under CLCH care and exclude harms that the patient had already 

sustained when they arrived in our care, for example a patient discharged from an acute hospital to 

the district nursing service with a pressure ulcer. We exceeded the national target for new harms in 

all bar one month last year. The board target was exceeded three times during the year. At the end 

of 2015/16 the Trust was just 0.1% shy of achieving the board target.  

Graph 10: The proportion of patients whose care was harm free

 

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 h

ar
m

 f
re

e
 

2015/16 

All Harm Free CLCH Harm Free Other Harm Free Threshold

Page 37

http://www.safetythermometer.nhs.uk/


15 

 

Patients free from venous thromboembolism (VTE)  

We count the number of patients on the survey day who have a VTE, such as a deep vein thrombosis 

(DVT). We have exceeded this target all year.   

Graph 11: The proportion of patients free from VTE. 

 

Patients free from catheter associated urinary tract infections (CAUTIs)  

This category of harm counts the number of patients on the survey day who have a CAUTI. We have 

exceeded this target all year.   

Graph 12: The proportion of patients free from CAUTI. 

 

Patients who did not fall  

On the survey day, we count the number of patients who fell in the previous 3 days. This target gas 

been achieved since May 2015 as demonstrated in Graph 13. Graph 13 is prevalence data, whereas 

graphs 14 and 15 show the incidence of falls in Q4 2015/16.  

Graph 13: Proportion of patients who did not fall

 

 

 

97%

98%

99%

100%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb MarP
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 V

TE
 f

re
e

 

2015/16 
Percentage Threshold

97%

98%

99%

100%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb MarP
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 f

re
e

 
fr

o
m

 C
A

U
TI

 

2015/16 
Percentage Threshold

96%

97%

98%

99%

100%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 f

re
e

 f
ro

m
 f

al
ls

 

2015/16 

Percentage Threshold

Page 38



  Page 16 of 71 
 

 

Safety Indicators by Incidence 

We continue to meet our target of a 30% increase in harm free care as measured by incidence. 

Graph 14. 30% increase in harm free incidents from 2012/13 baseline 

 

 

Graph 15: 50% reduction in medication incidents that caused harm from 2012/13 baseline 

 

 
Pressure ulcers  
 

Graph 16: Incidence of CLCH acquired (i.e. acquired in our care) pressure ulcers 

The number of new ulcers has remained stable with no statistically significant changes.  

 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
U

 

2015/16 

PU Mean Upper Control Limit Lower Control Limit

Page 39



  Page 17 of 71 
 

 

 
 
Pressure ulcer cases are reviewed by serious incident panels. The reports from these panels are 
submitted to our commissioners. All cases have agreed action plans, which are monitored through 
the SI process. The lessons learned are discussed and shared in a number of ways:  

 Back to the staff/team directly involved in the case 

 At the local and Trust wide complaints, litigation, incident and pals (CLIPS)  meetings 

 At the Pressure Ulcer Working Group 
When key messages are identified they are included in the Spotlight on Quality Newsletter.  
 

 
Prevalence of pressure ulcers 
For the last 12 months more than 98% of patients were free from CLCH acquired pressure ulcers, 
consistently exceeding the national target.  
 
Graph 17: The proportion of patients who did not have pressure ulcers.  

 

 
  

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 P

U
 f

re
e

 

2015/16 

All PU Free CLCH PU Free Other PU Free Target

Page 40



  Page 18 of 71 
 

 

SMART, EFFECTIVE CARE.  

 

Graph 18: The percentage of patients who were satisfied with their wait for treatment

 

 

Graph 19: The percentage of patients reporting a positive goal attainment score (GAS)* 

 
 
* This is a way of measuring whether a patient’s individual goals are met.   

74%

76%

78%

80%

82%

84%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 

2015/16 

Percentage Threshold

80%

85%

90%

95%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 

2015/16 

Percentage Threshold

Page 41



  Page 19 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY - Sickle Cell Service  

I was first aware of the service for sickle cell at Richford Gate in 2004 when my twins were diagnosed 

with the condition. I met a lady called ‘Y’ who came round to visit me and gave me a book on sickle 

cell to read which was very scary because I had no clue how bad it really was.  

Then ‘Y’ retired and another lady took over the service. She was there for about six months before 
she made contact with me and by then I had kind of given up with Richford Gate because the time 
had lapsed. Then I started receiving phone calls from a lady called ‘Z’ but I was too stubborn to 
return the calls because what was the point? She was probably only going to be there for six months 
and then leave as well. One day I went to St Mary’s Hospital and this lady came up to me and 
introduced herself as ‘Z’. She reassured me that she would always message or call me back if I sent 
her an email or text and if she was unable to do so that day somebody else would, and usually within 
24 hours. 

We then built up a kind of friendship which put some of my faith and trust back into Richford Gate. 
She made some home visits just to see how I was doing generally and how the kids were doing. ‘Z’ 
has become like part of the family I suppose. If I cannot speak to ‘Z’ I talk to her colleague called X 
who has been a great help as well. 

I think that the service could arrange meetings locally where children with sickle cell could get 
together because my children feel very alone because there are not many children locally who have 
it. Maybe if they were to provide counselling sessions for children with sickle because when you miss 
time off school your confidence deteriorates because you have missed out on so much learning. Also 
with parents who have to spend time in hospital with one child if they could provide hotel type 
accommodation near the hospital with room for the parent with the other children, and keep the 
family together.  

I think we need a parent’s forum where we can get together and talk it would be beneficial. An 
online forum would also be good, for older children as well as parents. Maybe if the local hospitals 
do not have the facilities that they have at St Marys they should be aware that if someone does 
come in with a child with sickle cell it makes more sense to send the child straight to the specialist 
hospital instead of delaying the process by doing blood tests. 

A good thing would be an out of hours Haematology Helpline where you could get professional 
advice instead of rushing to the hospital because sometimes you go to the GP and the Doctor 
doesn’t always know what Sickle Cell is. A sickle cell youth club would also be a good idea where 
children with the same condition could meet, say once a month, and do fun things together at small 
cost. Parents could volunteer for some hours each with some professionals too. 

I feel they should do more in the way of information and let School Nurses know that when they are 
doing school staff training allergies they should include sickle cell 

 
Learning from this story 
From this story, a number of actions are being taken forward by the Sickle Cell service. A blog will be 
developed with the help of a local support group whilst the service will also develop a peer support 
group and enable access to an existing youth group. So that more professionals are confident in 
caring for children and adults with the condition, the service will provide additional training for staff 
groups whist also informing patients about urgent care facilities to enable fast track to specialist 
care. 
  

Page 42



  Page 20 of 71 
 

 

 

LOOKING BACK – TRUST QUALITY PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES  

As well as the implementation of the Quality Strategy described above, the trust was 

involved in a number of other quality projects and initiatives and several of these are 

described below:  

 

TRUST PROJECTS - POSITIVE PATIENT EXPERIENCE  

 

ACHIEVING EXCELLENCE TOGETHER 

This is a campaign focussed in improving the quality of district nursing services across our 

organisation whilst also improving the morale of our staff working in these services. Our campaign 

lead supported staff and teams in taking forward the following campaign priorities; 

 

Lifting the mood: We have initiated a newsletter 'by district nurses, for district nurses' which is sent 

to all district nursing teams monthly. This newsletter highlights exciting news, includes staff and 

patient stories and keeps community nurses up to date with the ongoing work of the campaign and 

other programmes such as our continuous improvement programme. Team building events have 

been organised for each borough for community nurses and we held a celebration event for staff in 

November 2015 

 

Fit for practice: We have appointed practice development nurses for each borough who work with 

new and less experienced community nurses, enabling their competence and wider personal / 

professional development 

 

Filling the gaps: We have developed a range of approaches to support recruitment including the 

mapping of career pathways. A fast-track programme has been developed for less experienced staff 

which will now be piloted. This is a 12 month work-based programme that will support their 

succession into deputy team leader roles and is attracting nurse recruitment and we envisage that it 

will also support staff retention.  

 

Modelling the way: We are focussing on safer staffing and defining team structures, numbers and 

skill mix 

 

Leading the way: We have developed a 12 month clinical leadership programme for our district 

nursing team leaders, a programme for deputy team leaders as well as leadership development for 

our clinical business unit managers and clinical leads within district nursing services. 

 
DEMENTIA CHAMPIONS PROGRAMME 
We aim to develop an informed and effective workforce for people with dementia and to this end 

we were successful in gaining funding from Health Education North West London to develop and 

host an innovative Dementia Champions Programme for staff working closely with those who have 

dementia.  The programme was developed collaboratively with a range of stakeholders and 

Buckinghamshire New University and it is open to staff from differing professions who work in CLCH 

and other care organisations in North West London. Champions may work in hospitals, care homes, 

hospices, clinics or community teams providing a range of differing services for those with dementia. 

Page 43



  Page 21 of 71 
 

 

The purpose is to provide practical, needs led and accessible approach to developing people’s 

knowledge and skills in dementia care and also to enable them in taking forward a range of service 

improvements.  

 

DEMENTIA ENGAGEMENT PROJECT 

We are hosting an innovative 18 month project in collaboration with the Point of Care Foundation 

and Health Education North West London. The purpose of this work is to engage with people with 

dementia and their carers across North West London to create an effective, inclusive process to 

involve people with dementia and their carers in the design, planning and implementation of locally 

relevant training to change the culture in dementia care.  

 

COMPASSION IN CARE:  

We have continued to implement our Compassion in Care project which aims to promote dignified 

and compassionate care through making a difference to the experience of service users and carers. 

Through this project we aim to embed the 6Cs across the whole of CLCH (care, compassion, 

competence, communication, courage and commitment) in line with the NHS England Compassion 

in Practice vision and strategy (http://www.6cs.england.nhs.uk/pg/dashboard).  

We have received funding from Health Education North West London to further implement the 

Compassion in Care model with partner organisations and to develop a Compassion in Care 

Community Provider network. This will enable staff to contribute to the promotion of compassion in 

practice where they work, and promote a consistent culture of compassion through the patient 

journey, through the attainment of Compassion in Care competencies.   

 

END OF LIFE CARE: 
We have taken forward work to develop and embed our End of Life Care Strategy (2015 – 2018) 

through our End of Life Care Model to ensure the delivery of holistic, competent, compassionate 

care for the dying and their families regardless of where they are cared for. The strategy 

encompasses improving access to end of life care services, improving choice and the coordination of 

services to reduce inequalities of service provision. It aims to increase the proportion of patients 

who are cared for and die in their preferred place of care. 

The strategy is actioned through a number of work-streams including the following:  

 

Advance Care Planning: We are implementing Advance Care Planning documentation which has 

been incorporated into our electronic care records. Advance care planning master classes have 

taken place in each of the boroughs facilitated by the Royal Marsden Hospital and further classes are 

planned.  

 

Assessment and Care Planning: An individual plan of care and support for the dying person in their 

last days and hours has been developed. This is used to record individualised tailored care provided 

to the person whilst also supporting their families, carers and others close to them.  

 

Education and Training: Core education standards for the care and support of the dying person in 

their last days and hours have been developed for all staff. An education programme has also been 

developed to support the core education standards and implementation of an Individual Plan of care 

and support. 

Page 44

https://connect.clch.nhs.uk/owa/redir.aspx?C=14ca72e12af443fc816f188312ed55e7&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.6cs.england.nhs.uk%2fpg%2fdashboard


  Page 22 of 71 
 

 

Bereavement information: We have held focus groups to consider our bereavement information 
and this has now been updated for staff, families and carers whilst we also plan to implement 
Schwartz rounds.   
 

Symptom Management: We have reviewed our symptom management guidelines and our 

administration of the subcutaneous medicines policy.  

 

 

LEARNING DISABILITIES 

Traditionally, whilst people with Learning Disabilities often have complex health needs, their 

outcomes have been poorer than the general population.  CLCH is committed to eliminating this 

inequality and believe that people with a Learning Disability have the right to the same level of 

healthcare as that provided to the general population.  To this end we have worked collaboratively 

with the Local Authority to provide services to people with Learning Disabilities. These specialist 

services are expert in assessing and meeting the needs of this client group. People with learning 

disabilities may also access our general services such as walk in centres, community nursing and 

dentistry, so it is essential that the care we provide in such areas also meets the needs of this client 

group. 

 

  

Page 45



  Page 23 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY – Learning Disabilities 

I have been receiving services from Hammersmith and Fulham Learning Disability team for over 

twenty years. A lot has changed over these years, including moving buildings three times. I have 

seen nurses, counsellors, social workers, and psychologists over this time; they have helped me with 

my emotional problems, my diabetes, my medication, and other doctor and hospital appointments. 

My experience of most of the service has been very good. I have always got on with the staff here; 

particularly my nurse and psychologist because I can have a laugh and a joke with them and they are 

all nice people. I feel comfortable talking about my problems with them because I know that they 

will help me. With some staff I feel that they are like family to me; it is like having lots of other 

sisters and brothers! 

It is important to me that I can get hold of staff easily by calling them. I find this very helpful with my 

nurse who always answers their phone and who I am in regular contact with. However, I get 

frustrated when I cannot get hold of other staff- like my social worker- and it makes me think that 

they do not do their job properly and that they do not want to help.   

The services I have received have made my life much better by helping me with a lot of things. In my 

psychology sessions, for example, I learnt a lot of skills to help me manage my anger and feel calmer. 

I have also been helped with my diabetes and other physical problems and the nurses remind me 

when to take my medication which has also helped a lot. Another thing they help me with is 

supporting me to meet new people and attend new things; without this support I would not go to 

first appointments because I need to know that I can trust people before I spend time getting to 

know them.  

I have always felt involved in the decisions made about my care and know that I can ask questions 

and refuse or agree to different types of care if I want- it is always my choice. I feel that all staff 

communicate well with me; they listen to my problems, ask me questions, and have a laugh and a 

joke with me.  When I come to appointments here I normally get here early because I like to chat 

with staff. This is also my favourite building over the years because it is the biggest. However, it 

frustrates me when there are no staff on reception who know about the learning disabilities team.  

As well as having good reception staff, I think that appointments should be quicker and everything 

should be on time. I would suggest that the staff start earlier and that the service maybe opens at 

8am rather than 9am to make sure that everything runs quicker. For most of my sessions I am seen 

on time but there are some where people tell me to wait ten minutes and this frustrates me.  

If I had a friend who needed help I would recommend the service because of the staff.  My one 

message to new staff is to just look after people. If you do this you will be doing a good job!  

Learning from this story 

A key message from this person’s story is about staff being aware of the needs of those with learning 

disabilities and planning to meet their individual needs. We have developed a ‘flag’ within the 

electronic patient record so that those with a learning disability can be easily identified. We are 

planning to implement mandatory training for all staff to raise awareness of the needs of those with 

learning disabilities whilst also implementing specific training for staff who work in the Single Point 

of Access and Single Point of Referral services so that appointment times can be tailored to people’s 

needs.  

Page 46



  Page 24 of 71 
 

 

TRUST PROJECTS - PREVENTING HARM  

SIGN UP TO SAFETY  

Sign up to Safety is a national patient safety campaign, one of a set of national initiatives to help the 

NHS improve the safety of patient care.   Collectively and cumulatively these initiatives aim to 

reduce avoidable harm by 50% and support the ambition to save 6,000 lives. 

The campaign has five safety pledges: 

1. Putting safety first 

2. Continually learn 

3. Being honest 

4. Collaborate 

5. Being supportive 

 

We joined the national Sign up to Safety campaign in September 2014 and in response to the 

pledges, we set out a number of actions that we would undertake to form the basis of our patient 

safety improvements. In February and March 2015 four listening events were held for patients and 

members in the four principal boroughs in which CLCH deliver care; Barnet, Hammersmith and 

Fulham, Kensington and Chelsea and Westminster. Five themes emerged from these events - 

Supporting and signposting patients and carers; raising awareness to raise standards of care; 

working together within the community; better use of information and technology and treating the 

person as an individual.   

 

These themes were shared at a staff conference where staff were asked to identify safety 

improvement measures for their specialist areas of care and from this to develop service 

improvement projects to address these issues. These themes  included:  educating and signposting 

patients, their families and carers in pressure ulcer care through using new technology;  improving 

knowledge of specialist formulae with GPs; ensuring joined up working between hospital and 

community care; fully utilising information and technology within the dental service and improving 

communication between district nurses and patients in Hammersmith and Fulham.  Each project is 

led by a member of our frontline staff who is supported to implement and monitor their projects 

through workshops, training and the provision of expert advice. 

 

From the outset of the campaign, CLCH has been clear that clinical staff should lead their own safety 

projects. This fundamental belief has not changed and therefore the aim remains ‘to engage the 

ambition of staff by identifying the changes to their practice that are required to identify, implement 

and evaluate change in their service that will improve its quality’.  

 

The next stage of our campaign will now be to integrate sign up to safety into the safety groups 

using the shared governance approach set out in our Quality Strategy 2016 – 2019. 

 

More detailed information about the Trust’s  Sign up to Safety plan can be found on the following 

link: https://www.england.nhs.uk/signuptosafety/whos-signed-up/clch/  

Page 47

https://www.england.nhs.uk/signuptosafety/whos-signed-up/clch/


  Page 25 of 71 
 

 

DUTY OF CANDOUR 

Since November 2015 the duty of candour became a statutory requirement. This duty focuses on 

prompt notification, together with an apology, explanation and reasonable support for patients, or 

those acting on their behalf, who have been harmed.  In practice this means that as soon as 

practicable after being made aware of an incident that has caused harm, the trust must conduct an 

investigation and notify the relevant person within ten days. Compliance with the duty is monitored 

via the trust’s DATIX incident reporting system. Additionally the patient safety managers review and 

support staff to ensure our duty is met.  Compliance is reported via the serious incident reports 

which are presented to the trust board and serious incident reports which are submitted and 

presented to the CCG clinical quality review groups.  Within 2015/16 we reviewed our Being Open 

policy (which incorporates the duty of candour); this helped lead the compliance with the duty to 

100% from November 2015 onwards.  

 
 
INCIDENT REPORTING  
 

Learning from serious incidents 

Serious incidents can be described as events in health care where the potential for learning is so 

great, or the consequences to patients, families and carers, staff or organisations are so significant, 

that they warrant using additional resources to mount a comprehensive response. 

 
Within the Trust we use Root Cause Analysis (RCA) methodologies to investigate every serious 

incident to enable lessons to be learnt and disseminated across the organisation. Following the RCAs 

actions plans are created, monitored and key messages shared widely.  

 

Within the year, we have achieved some improvements on incident reporting indicators, for 

example those measured within the NHS 2015 staff survey published on 23rd February 2016 which 

indicated that we are better than average in the following two key indicators: 

 

 Percentage of staff reporting errors, near misses or incidents witnessed in the last month 
Our score for 2015 was 94% compared to the national 2015 average for community trusts 
which at 90%. 

 Staff confidence and security in reporting unsafe clinical practice 
There has been a statistically significant positive change in this finding since the 2014 survey, 
and we are ranked above average compared with all community Trusts in 2015.  

 
We were also ranked ‘Outstanding’ in first annual ‘Learning from Mistakes’ league which was 
published in March 2016. We are one of only eighteen providers in the country that has achieved 
this ranking in one of the latest quality initiatives launched by NHS Improvement.  
 
To further the quality of our services, we have taken the following actions to improve learning from 

incidents:  

 

 A continued control on the quality of the data entry on incident reports to ensure accurate 

recording of degree of harm through quality checking by the patient safety managers and 

updating of the Datix (and incident reporting system) to improve the integrity of the data.  

 

Page 48



  Page 26 of 71 
 

 

 Established feedback notifications on Datix so that incident reporters receive the lessons 

learnt and action taken as a result of the incident that they reported, upon final approval of 

the incident.  

 

 Regularly included articles in the ‘Spotlight on Quality’ monthly publication from the 

Complaints, Litigation, Incidents, PALS and Serious Incidents (CLIPS) group, for example 

Pressure Ulcers in August/September, Falls in November 2015, Information Governance in 

December 2015 and January 2016.  

 

 Held a cold chain summit in October 2015 following a number of Cold Chain serious 

incidents. The event, which 32 clinical staff attended, focussed on presentations outlining 

the background, events and learning surrounding the cold chain incidents, followed by group 

work looking at the reasons why these incidents occurred, with particular reference to the 

human factor elements on adherence to policies and clinical practice.  

 

 Developed a Datix / Incidents discussion board on our Intranet; The Hub, to enable staff to 

report any issues they have with reporting incidents or using the system. The Patient Safety 

Team monitors and responds to all posts.  

 

 Maintained a database of Complaints, Litigation, Incidents, PALS and Serious Incidents 

(CLIPS) Groups to share the learning from serious event.  

 

During 2015/16 the total number of incidents reported on the Datix system was 6,328. This is a 1.7% 

decrease from 2014/15 when a total of 6,436 incidents were reported.  The Patient Safety Managers 

continue to work closely with clinical colleagues to raise awareness about the types of incidents that 

should be recorded on the incident reporting system. In addition, as part of the Trust induction, an 

e-learning package was launched in March 2015 which was made available to all staff during the 

year via the ESR Learning portal and publicised through Communications including Spotlight on 

Quality.  

 

INCIDENT REPORTING - NHS ENGLAND PRESCRIBED INFORMATION  

The following two questions were asked of all trusts.  

The data made available to the National Health Service trust or NHS foundation trust by the Health 
and Social Care Information Centre with regard to the number and, where available, rate of patient 
safety incidents reported within the trust during the reporting period, and the number and 
percentage of such patient safety incidents that resulted in severe harm or death. 

The national and reporting learning system (NRLS) reported 1,154 incidents during the first half of 

2015. This equates to 38.22 per 1,000 bed days. This puts us in the lowest 25% of reporters, within a 

cluster of other NHS Community Organisations, and below the median reporting rate for this cluster 

of 146.03 incidents per 1,000 bed days.  

 

During this period, we reported 58 incidents (5.0%) resulting in severe harm, which was higher than 

the cluster rate of 0.7%.  There was one incident which resulted in the death of a patient.  

Page 49



  Page 27 of 71 
 

 

This was lower than the cluster rate of 0.2%. Within the arena of patient safety it is considered that 

organisations that report more incidents usually have a better and more effective safety culture. The 

severe harm cases we reported were grade 3 and 4 pressure ulcers and three falls.  

 

The data made available to the National Health Service trust or NHS foundation trust by the Health 
and Social Care Information Centre with regard to the percentage of patients aged—  
(i) 0 to 15; and  
(ii) 16 or over,  
Readmitted to a hospital which forms part of the trust within 28 days of being discharged from a 

hospital which forms part of the trust during the reporting period.  

 

This metric is normally only applied to acute units where the measure is an indication of 
inappropriate early discharge. As such, it is not reported by community trusts and so has not been 
responded to.  

  

Page 50



  Page 28 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY – Psychological Health 
I originally went to the GP to talk about my perceived issue of aggression. The GP asked me to 

complete an assessment, which revealed high levels of anxiety it felt as though I was contacted very 

quickly to have the initial phone assessment. I found the assessment a little repetitive. I felt I got 

asked the same questions as I had from the GP.  I felt that for some, this might be the opportunity to 

answer questions differently, if they still weren’t sure about having therapy and admitting to their 

problems. 

 

I knew my GP pretty well so it was easy to bring up problems especially as it was face to face, but I 

had to answer these questions [the triage] when stood outside McDonalds on a busy road and that 

was hard.  However, the therapist I spoke with was empathetic and non-judgemental. This was 

different to other experiences I’ve had with hospitals where no one has done that. As I walked in the 

door of the service I felt it was perfectly welcoming. Everyone was perfectly friendly, informative, 

asked me to fill in the forms and sign in with just my initials, so there was privacy. I wasn’t made to 

wait, which is what people don’t like. There was good information around on keeping fit, stopping 

drinking and smoking, which was helpful.  I couldn’t think of anything to improve it!  

The initial meeting with my therapist was good.  At the time I didn’t know my problem was a 

problem so it was good to hear someone else’s side and their understanding of what you described 

and what might have been causing it. I knew it would never be a case of someone rolling their eyes 

and saying you don’t have a problem with that, but they immediately understood and were 

empathetic. As the sessions went on I could actually see myself changing as I filled in the 

questionnaires. Conversation was free flowing and not too structured, which I liked. My therapist 

was a good interrogator; I felt able to voice any concerns! 

In my last session the therapist said that everything was going very well and improvement had been 

made over the course of treatment. We didn’t complete a firm staying well plan but they said they 

would be happy for me to come back if I needed further help. I felt by this session ready to finish as I 

hadn’t had anything to write down that week in terms of negative thoughts. If I was the manager of 

the service, there’s not much I would change, it was great from my experience. I suppose the only 

thing might be increasing awareness; awareness of the problems that you can help with, not just 

depression and anxiety but post-accident difficulties as well. 

 

Learning from this story 

Some people may not be aware of our self-referral process. We now cover this in community 

outreach sessions. We have also raised awareness about the alternatives of telephone sessions if 

people can’t attend in person. Our website has been revised and we have added this information. 

We also intend to develop electronic leaflets and add our web site details to our letter templates. 

People may be uncertain about the purpose of the triage, so are sometimes not in an appropriate 

place to discuss sensitive issues when contacted. The team has had a lot of new members so we 

explained to all new members how to appropriately describe a triage appointment to a patient. We 

also identified that people may not be sure about the number of sessions to expect. Clinicians now 

set up a treatment contract with the client in their initial assessment/follow-up 

 

 

Page 51



  Page 29 of 71 
 

 

TRUST PROJECTS - SMART EFFECTIVE CARE  

 

CLINICAL OUTCOMES  

Over the past 2 years the Trust has worked extensively with clinical teams to identify appropriate 

electronic measures for clinical outcomes using a consistently applied methodology. Discussion with 

teams has identified that focusing on the management of variation across the three outcomes is the 

next developmental step aligning with the Trusts intent to develop continuous improvement leaders 

and organisational capability. 

 

Clinical outcomes are a key strand of clinical effectiveness at CLCH and, alongside patient safety and 

patient experience, are an important component in the assurance and improvement of quality in 

clinical practice. 

 

The aim for 2015/16 was to ensure that all CLCH clinical services were competent in the basic use of 

outcomes measures i.e. that they understand what outcomes should be expected from their 

interventions, have identified a minimum of three outcomes which they are able to demonstrate 

performance against on a continuing basis, and have established an aspirational goal for improving 

performance. 

 

Going forward, services are now being asked to review and analyse the variation in their outcomes 

each month to establish a ‘normal’ level of performance and to understand the amount of variation 

that results within current service delivery. Once the normal level has been established and the 

common causes of variation have been identified, services should be able to identify a goal for 

improvement. 

 

Discussions with commissioners are commencing to explore how to incorporate this work into 

contracts and schedules.   

  

Page 52



  Page 30 of 71 
 

 

PARTICIPATION IN CLINICAL AUDITS 

CLCH undertook Trust-wide audits incorporating areas of high risk and concern affecting the entire 

organisation. Further to peer review by the Clinical Effectiveness Steering Group and ratification by 

the Quality Committee, a forward clinical audit plan was approved and agreed for 2015-16.  

National confidential enquiries  

During 2015-16 the Trust was not eligible for participation in any national confidential enquiries but 

was registered for the following six national audits.  

 
(Information awaited) 

National Clinical Audits Participation Number of cases submitted or reason for 

non-participation 

Sentinel Stroke National Audit 

Programme (SSNAP) 

  

BTS Pulmonary Rehabilitation 

Audit (part of the national 

COPD audit) 

  

Audit of Imperial's Laser Books   

National Audit of Intermediate 

Care (NAIC) 2015 

  

 

National Audits 

UNICEF Baby Friendly Initiative 

audit 

  

National Parkinson's Audit 2015   

 

 

 

Page 53



  Page 31 of 71 
 

 

Local and Trust-wide audits  
 
No Item  Division Service Outcome and Actions 2015/16 

1. 1 Re-audit of intervals of 

taking Bitewing radiographs 

in children 

APC Dental The aim of the audit was to ascertain 

appropriate use of Bitewing 

radiographs in children in line with 

national guidelines and if the service 

had made an improvement on the 73% 

compliance from the previous cycle. 

The compliance of the re-audit was 

93%. The mandatory requirement for 

recording the radiograph reports was 

100% compliance. To action is to 

continue to reinforce the guidelines 

and mandatory requirements. 

 

2. 2 Audit on Bitewing 

radiograph for new 

Paediatric dental patients 

 

APC Dental The aim of the audit was to establish if 

radiographs were taken at the initial 

assessment appointment of all new 

patients. 100% patients were 

considered for radiographs. 64% 

patients were given a radiograph. 36% 

were not given a radiograph as on the 

day the child was unable to co-operate. 

Request for radiographs has been 

incorporated in the new referral forms.  

3. 3 Audit of appropriateness of 

radiographs taken for adult 

patients across CLCH - Inner 

APC Dental The aim of this audit was to ascertain if 

adult patients within the dental service 

had radiographs taken where there 

was clinical justification and had a film 

full report. 100% radiographs taken 

were clinically justified and all of them 

had reports. Action is to continue 

maintaining the compliance. 

4. 4 Audit on frequency of taking 

Radiographs in adults in 

Barnet Dental Services 

(CLCH) 

APC Dental The aim of the audit was to determine 

if the radiographs were taken at the set 

frequencies stated in the Faculty of 

General Dental Practice guidelines. 

73% compliance was noted. The 

actions identified were to re-audit after 

one year and to reiterate the 

guidelines to the clinicians.  

5. 5 Re-audit of dental Recall 

Process 

APC Dental The aim of the audit was to establish if 

dentists were recording the next oral 

health review appointment after 

completing the treatment as per NICE 

guidelines CG19 and to observe if 

compliance had increased since the 

first audit. 95% compliance was noted. 

The compliance had increased from 

79% to 95%.The action remains to 

Page 54



  Page 32 of 71 
 

 

reinforce that all patients should have 

a recorded agreed interval for routine 

dental examination. 

6. 6 Blood Borne Virus (BBV) 

Screening & Vaccination 

Audit 

APC Homeless Health Aim of the audit was to establish the 

current practice after the 

implementation of BBV Screening & 

Vaccination Protocol supported by 

NICE guidelines (PH43). 41% new 

patients referred to the service were 

offered BBV screening and 14% were 

offered 1st dose of Hepatitis B 

vaccination. The actions include 

offering health check and screening as 

standard practice, improve patient 

information and update the protocol. 

7. 7 Generalised Anxiety 

Disorder 

APC Primary Care 

Psychological 

Health 

Aim of the audit was to measure 

current practice for treating 

generalized anxiety disorder in adults 

against the recommendations in the 

NICE CG113 (Steps 2a, 3a & 3b). 

68% met the recommendations in the 

guidelines. The main actions are to 

improve the documentation at the 

point of triage and provide patient 

information by the practitioners. 

8. 8 Audit of intra uterine device 

insertions (IUDs) in the 

Contraception and Sexual 

Health Service. (CASH) 

 

APC Sexual Health The aim of the audit was to assess the 

performance of clinician inserting the 

IUD against three Faculty of Sexual & 

Reproductive Healthcare guidelines 

namely to insert copper device TCu380 

with banded copper on the arms and 

recording uterine version and length. 

Compliance for choice of device was 

54%, recording uterine version was 

99% and for length was 95%. The 

action is to increase the number of 

TCu380 IUD to reduce the number of 

devices replaced early and prevent 

untoward events. 

9. 9 DAT Scan requests and 

management outcomes for 

patients attending Edgware 

Parkinson's service 

BCSS Parkinson’s Service: 

Barnet 

The aim was to ascertain the number 

of DAT scan requests for the year and 

to evaluate how the results influenced 

the management outcome for the 

patients. 47 DAT scans were requested 

in the year. DAT scans ruled out 

Parkinson for 46% cases and helped to 

provide clearer clinical understanding 

in uncertain cases, improving 

management and outcomes for 

patients. 

Page 55



  Page 33 of 71 
 

 

10. 1
0 

Safety indicators for 

patients starting oral 

anticoagulant treatment 

BCSS Specialist Nursing/ 

Anticoagulation 

The aim of the audit was ensure 

regular monitoring of safety indicators 

for the anticoagulant service 

supporting the British Committee for 

Standards in Haematology. 100% 

compliance in following the 

appropriate loading doses. 15% new 

referrals were incomplete and were 

from GP surgeries.  

All the patients were provided 

information, written dose instructions 

and next INR measurement 

appointment No patients suffered 

major bleeding in the first month and 

whilst using INR. No patients had sub-

therapeutic INR after stopping heparin.  

The action identified is improving the 

quality of new referrals from GPs.  

11. 1
1 

Antimuscarinics prescription 

by continence specialist 

nurses for overactive 

bladder syndrome 

treatment 

BCSS Specialist Nursing/ 

Continence Service 

The aim of the audit was to assess if 

NICE Guidelines (CG171)2013 were met 

in relation to prescribing 

antimuscarinics in overactive bladder 

syndrome. There was 100% compliance  

12. 1
2 

Nutritional Care Audit Tool BCSS Community 

Nursing Services – 

Barnet/Inpatient 

Rehab: Barnet 

Aim of the audit was to ascertain 

whether malnutrition audit tool, MUST, 

and dehydration tool, AGULP, were 

being used in line with the local policy 

and effectively in care of patients as 

per NICE (2006) Nutritional Support in 

Adults. The findings were that use of 

MUST was complied with and 

appropriate care plans were being put 

in place. However, it did not fully 

comply with NICE guidance as not all 

patients were assessed on arrival. 

AGULP tool was not being used and the 

appropriate care plan was not in place. 

Actions identified were to ensure 

MUST assessment was carried out on 

arrival. AGULP, which was identified as 

unsafe tool, would be replaced with 

FURST and appropriate training and 

practice would be put in place.  

13. 1
3 

Splinting for the prevention 

and correction of 

contractures in adults with 

neurological dysfunction 

BCSS Inpatient 

Rehabilitation 

(Barnet)/Inpatient 

Rehab: Barnet 

The aim of this audit is to ensure 

correct assessment, treatment and 

management of patients needing and 

using splints to prevent or correct 

contractures after a neurological 

dysfunction as per COT and ASPIN 

guidelines 2015. WAITING FOR 

RESPONSE TO QUERY 

Page 56



  Page 34 of 71 
 

 

14. 1
4 

Audit of MSK clinical staff 

against NICE guidance of 

behaviour change: individual 

approaches PH49 

BCSS Specialist 

Therapies/MSK 

 

15. 1
5 

Management of 

Osteoarthritis in Adults 

within the Musculoskeletal 

Service: adherence to NICE 

Guideline CG177 

BCSS Specialist 

Therapies/MSK 

The aim of this audit was to ensure the 

compliance of the musculoskeletal 

service in accordance with NICE 

guideline CG177. The service was 80% 

compliant. The actions include 

improving the holistic approach to 

supporting the patient with 

osteoarthritis of the knee and 

providing patients with more 

information regarding any surgical 

options. 

16. 1
6 

No. of patients with reduced 

HbA1c within 6 months of 

treatment from the 

community diabetes team 

BCSS Diabetes: Barnet & 

West Herts 

 

17. 1
7 

COPD “Hospital at Home" 

project. 

BCSS Respiratory (Barnet 

and West Herts) 

 

18. 1
8 

Adult Home Enteral Feeding 

Audit Team Compliance with 

NICE guidelines CG32 

BCSS Dietetics (Nutrition 

Support Team) 

The aim of the audit was establish that 

the service was complying with the 

NICE guidelines CG32. 2 out of 5 

criteria met 100% compliance, 93% 

met the provision of contact details of 

the healthcare professional and 

homecare company and 88% records 

were completed with updated feeding 

regime. Actions taken have been to 

produce Patient Information Leaflet 

which includes all contact details and 

the assessment form has been updated 

to include a prompt for ‘updated 

feeding regime’.     

19. 1
9 

Incidence and management 

of oedematous wet legs in 

community setting 

BCSS Community 

Nursing Barnet 

The aim of the audit was ascertain if 

patients with oedematous wet legs 

were managed as per NICE guidelines 

D007871. 61% of patients underwent 

Doppler Ultrasound assessment and 

25% of patients were put in 

compression bandaging. 

20. 2
0 

Preferred place of death 

(PPD) in end of life patients 

BCSS Community 

Nursing/ 

Community 

Nursing Barnet 

Aim of the audit was to identify the 

preferred place of death for end of life 

patients and if the preference was met. 

94% patients died in their preferred 

place. In 4% of the records PPD was not 

recorded. The action identified is to 

ensure PPD is stated in 100% records. 

Page 57



  Page 35 of 71 
 

 

21. 2
1 

Audit of pulmonary 

rehabilitation  uptake after 

hospitalised acute 

exacerbations of COPD 

discharge 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Barnet & West 

Herts /Respiratory 

(Barnet and West 

Herts) 

 

22. 2
2 

Self- management in COPD 

in the respiratory service 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions 

Inner 

Boroughs/Respirat

ory Inner London 

 

23. 2
3 

Biopsychosocial 

components of Respiratory 

admissions within Charing 

Cross Hospital 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions 

Inner Boroughs/ 

Respiratory Inner 

London 

 

24. 2
4 

Venous Leg Ulcer 

Assessment and 

Management 

BCSS Community 

Nursing/Tissue 

Viability 

The aim of the audit was to establish if 

the current practice of leg ulcer and 

management aligned with NICE 

guidance 2012. There was overall 

89.5% compliance. A re-audit is 

recommended. 

25. 2
5 

Pain Tool Audit (re-audit) BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/IPU (doctors) 

The aim of the re-audit was to 

ascertain if there had been an 

improvement in the use of pain charts 

for appropriate patients. The 

compliance for use of the charts in 

appropriate patients was 87% (58% 

improvement) and 50% completed 

regularly for ongoing use. The action is 

to continue improving.  

26. 2
6 

Slip, Trips & Falls Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care /IPU (nurses & 

OT) 

The aim of the audit was to establish 

adherence to the CLCH slips, trips and 

falls policy and practice guidelines on 

the prevention of falls (NICE, 2013). 

100% patients had their falls risk 

discussed at MDT. 75% had continence 

assessment and postural BP recorded. 

MEFRA was completed within four 

hours for 25% fall patient. The actions 

include recording time and date when 

MEFRA completed and where 

assessments cannot be done, follow up 

process to be put in place. 

27. 2
7 

Weekend Admissions to 

Hospital Audit 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/Community 

 

Page 58



  Page 36 of 71 
 

 

Team 

28. 2
8 

Opiate Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/Community 

Team 

The aim of this audit was ascertain the 

current practice for prescribing 

analgesia against Palliative Adult 

National and NICE guidelines. QUERY 

29. 2
9 

Steroids Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/Pharmacy 

The aim of the audit was to ascertain 

the collection and recording of the 

information of the steroid use for 

patients on steroids on admission to 

the inpatient unit. 45% had an 

indication recorded and 45% had a plan 

for the steroids on admission. The 

action is to ensure that name of 

steroid, dose, indication and 

management plan are recorded at time 

of admission and if the information is 

not available within 72hours. 

 

30. 3
0 

Review of Residents' 

Medical Records and Care 

Plans 

BCSS Continuing Care 

Nursing 

Homes/Athlone 

House, Garside 

House, PLK 

 

31. 3
1 

Management of Frozen 

Shoulders 

BCSS Specialist 

Therapies/MSK 

 

32. 3
2 

Effectiveness of the STarT 

Back allocating patients to 

different treatment 

pathways based on their 

prognosis with  current best 

practice 

BCSS Specialist 

Therapies/MSK 

 

33. 3
3 

Pneumococcal Treatment 

Compliance 

CHD 0-19 Services 

H&F/Children’s 

Community 

Nursing 

 

34. 3
5 

Paediatric nasogastric tube 

feeding management (re-

audit) 

CHD Children’s 

Therapies/Dietetics 

 

35. 3
6 

Giving of Buccal Midazolam 

by care workers during 

Seizure management 

CHD 0-19 Services 

H&F/Children’s 

Community 

Nursing 

 

  

Page 59



  Page 37 of 71 
 

 

36. 3
7 

Compliance with the 

Hepatitis B Clinical Practice 

Standard: for health visitors 

and Children's Nursing 

teams working with 

parents/carers and babies 

CHD 0-19 Services 

H&F/Health 

Visiting: H&F 0-19 

Services  

K&C/Health 

Visiting: Westm. 

 

37. 3
8 

Rating effectiveness of 

physiotherapy interventions 

within Employee Health 

Corporate/ 

Employee 

Health 

Employee Health  

      38. Stress reduction of CLCH 

employees 

Corporate/ 

Employee 

Health 

Employee Health  

39. Aseptic Non Touch 

Technique (ANTT) 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Infection 

Prevention 

 

40. Mealtime Mantra audits - 

bedded services 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Infection 

Prevention 

 

41. Urinary Catheter Care 

Documentation Audit 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Infection 

Prevention 

 

42. Dental audits Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Infection 

Prevention 

 

43. Hand Hygiene audits - 

Community Services 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Infection 

Prevention 

 

44. Hand Hygiene audits - 

bedded services 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Infection 

Prevention 

 

45. Safe and Secure Handling of 

Medicines & Cold Chain - 

Bedded Areas 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

46. Security of Prescriptions Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

  

Page 60



  Page 38 of 71 
 

 

47. Safe Management and Use 

of controlled Drugs - Clinics 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

48. 5 Patient Audit on transfer 

and discharges 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

49. Safe and Secure Handling of 

Medicines & Cold Chain - 

Clinics 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

50. Use of Antimicrobials Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

51. Omitted Medicines Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

52. Safe Management and Use 

of Controlled Drugs - 

Bedded Areas 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

53. Safe Management and Use 

of Controlled Drugs - 

Bedded Areas 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Medicines 

Management 

 

54. Health Records Keeping 

Clinical Audit – Re-audit 

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Clinical 

Effectiveness Team 

 

55. Health Records Keeping 

Clinical Audit  

Medical 

Directorate/ 

Trust wide 

Clinical 

Effectiveness Team 

 

56. Falls assessment and 

management in-patient 

rehabilitation 

BCSS Inpatient 

Rehabilitation 

Barnet/ Inpatient 

Rehabilitation 

Barnet 

 

57. Audit of clinical practice 

against NICE Falls in older 

people: assessment after a 

fall and preventing further 

falls (2015) Quality standard 

86 

NCNR Community 

Independence 

Service/Falls 

Prevention Service 

 

  

Page 61



  Page 39 of 71 
 

 

 

  

58. Re-audit of Dysphagia 

Outcome Measure (DOM) 

CHD Speech and 

Language Therapy 

(Adults) 

 

59. Adult Community Nursing 

Medicines Management 

NCNR/ 

Quality & 

Learning 

Division 

Community 

Nursing Service 

Central 

London/District 

Nursing: Central 

London 

 

60. Community Nursing NICE 

Guidance Pressure Ulcer 

CG029 2014 - 15 

NCNR/ 

Quality & 

Learning 

Division 

Community 

Nursing/District 

Nursing: Central 

London 

 

61. Falls assessment in the Falls 

Clinic at Finchley Memorial 

Hospital 

BCSS Falls prevention 

service / 

Intermediate Care 

Services 

 

62. PACE/Rapid Response 

Assessment Pack 

Documentation 

BCSS PACE/Rapid 

Response - 

Intermediate Care 

Services 

 

Page 62



  Page 40 of 71 
 

 

Service Evaluations 

1. The use of telehealth for 

patients with long term 

conditions 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Barnet & West 

Herts /Respiratory 

(Barnet and West 

Herts) 

 

2. Morning Handover Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/IPU (doctors) 

 

3. DNAR Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/IPU (doctors) 

 

6. Service Evaluation of the Cross 

Care System at CLCH with 

Version 12 of the Liverpool 

Care Pathway (LCP) 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/IPU (doctors) 

 

7. Inpatient Admissions Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/IPU (doctors) 

 

8. Out of Hours Telephone Calls 

Audit 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/IPU (nurses) 

 

9. Admissions Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/IPU (nurses) 

 

10. Missing Information of Referral 

Forms Audit 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/Community 

Team 

 

  

Page 63



  Page 41 of 71 
 

 

11. Response Times Audit BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/Community 

Team 

 

12. Syringe Drive Monitoring 

Charts 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/Pharmacy 

 

13. Social Work Response Rate – 

Community and IPU Referrals 

BCSS Integrated Long 

Term Conditions – 

Inner 

London/Palliative 

Care/Social Work 

 

14. Implementation of the Ages 

and Stages Questionnaire [ 

ASQ- 3] 

CHD 0-19 Services 

Westminster/ 

Health Visiting: 

Westminster 

 

15. Weighing and Measuring 

Service Evaluation 

CHD 0-19 Services 

Westminster/ 

Health Visiting: 

Westminster 

 

16. Audit of the movement in 

process 

CHD 0-19 Services 

Barnet/Health 

Visiting: H&F and 0-

19 Services 

H&F/Health Visiting 

H&F 

 

17. Effectiveness of Employee 

Health consultations 

Corporate/ 

Employee 

Health 

Employee Health  

18. Audit of research governance 

compliance  

Medical 

Directorate 

Research and 

Development 

 

19. Audit to determine compliance 

to the Trust's Policy on consent 

to examination, treatment or 

therapy 

Medical 

Directorate 

Research  and 

Development 

 

20. Audit of implementation of 

MCA (Mental Capacity Act 

2005) across services 

Quality & 

Learning 

Division/Saf

eguarding 

Safeguarding Adults  

  

Page 64



  Page 42 of 71 
 

 

21. Audit of supervision record - 

safeguarding 

Quality & 

Learning 

Division/Saf

eguarding 

Safeguarding 

Children 

 

22. The impact of the Specialist 

Weight Management Services 

(SWMS) on GP practice 

appointments  

BCSS Specialist 

Therapies/Nutrition 

& Dietetics 

Specialist Weight 

Management Team 

 

23. Panic alarm system in the 

Podiatry clinics of CLCH, 

Hammersmith and Fulham 

branch Audit 2014-15 

BCSS Safeguarding 

Children 

 

24. WIC UCC Safeguarding Audit Quality & 

Learning 

Division/Saf

eguarding 

Specialist 

Therapies/Podiatry 

 

25. Mouth Care Training for Health 

Care Assistants 

CHD Speech and 

Language Therapy 

(Adults) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



  Page 43 of 71 
 

 

PARTICIPATION IN RESEARCH 2015/16 

Participation in clinical research demonstrates CLCH’s commitment to improving the quality of care 

we offer and to making our contribution to wider health improvement. 'Clinical research' means 

research which has received a favourable opinion from a research ethics committee within 

the National Research Ethics Service (NRES).  

 

Research activity is monitored through the Clinical Effectiveness steering group, overseen by the 

Quality Committee a subcommittee of the Board. It is an established fact that active research within 

organizations promotes the highest standards of care in its settings. Health research in community 

healthcare has a potential to create new knowledge which will benefit many NHS organizations.   

Our Trust is keen to adopt such innovative approaches and practices, improving care and outcomes 

for our patients.   

 

CLCH offers great potential for research opportunities with its broad range of community services 

across the whole age spectrum, including: adult community nursing services, children and family 

services, specialist services to help manage long term conditions, rehabilitation and therapies, 

palliative care services, NHS walk-in and urgent care Centre’s. Future research opportunities for 

growth within the Trust are focussed on four main disease/service areas: Parkinson’s disease, 

Stroke, Diabetes, Sexual Health and commercial studies.  

 

The Trust Research Strategy (2014-2017) sets out eight key objectives aimed collectively at 

extending and enhancing the research profile of the organisation.  

 

The research goals are as follows and are intended to be implemented during the period 2014-17.  

Each goal translates into several actions that are taken forward via an annual implementation plan. 
 

 Develop a Robust Research Governance Framework 

 Develop a Research Culture within CLCH 

 Establish Communication about research activity and support internally & externally 

 Demonstrate visible research leadership: identifying research opportunities, offering 

research support and supervision, research training 

 Increase the amount of research funding and resources for research  

 Improve research partnerships and collaborative working 

 Support the implementation  of research into practice  

 Promote CLCH and its strengths as an essential research partner. 

 

These objectives map onto all areas of research activity within the Trust and will be achieved by 

working in collaboration with partners. We are making steady progress to both promote research 

activity and develop a research culture in the Trust; this is demonstrated by the achievement of 

exceeding our recruitment target for 2015/2016 and our annual Trust Research conference. We are 

ambitious to develop a supporting environment for health research by encouraging and facilitating 

researchers and to make effective partnerships with clinical research networks, other NHS Trusts, 

academic and industry sector.  

 

Page 66

http://www.hra.nhs.uk/about-the-hra/our-committees/research-ethics-committees-recs/


  Page 44 of 71 
 

 

CLCH was involved in 24 clinical research studies in a number of specialities during 2015/16 either as 

a Participant Identification Centre (PIC) or a host site including; Diabetes, Children’s health, Stroke, 

Sexual Health and Parkinson’s. The number of patients receiving relevant health services provided 

by Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust during 2015-16 that were recruited during that 

period to participate in research approved by a research ethics committee was 150. These patients 

were recruited into a clinical trial research project within the Sexual Health service.  

 

In 2015/2016, there were over 40 clinical staff participating in research covering 4 specialities 

approved by a research ethics committee. CLCH is a host site for approximately one third of studies, 

for a further third, CLCH acts as a Participation Identification Site (PIC) and the remaining studies are 

educational projects either self-funded by students or funded by the Trust for educational purposes 

such as MSc or PhD qualifications. 

 

The following are a few examples of current studies that CLCH is involved in:  

 Health visitors’ knowledge about pre-term infants care within the community 

 A cross-sectional study of young-onset diabetes in 2 UK ethnic groups 

 Patient-consented samples for STI diagnostic development & evaluation 

 Exploring the training needs of health visitors working with children with Down syndrome: 

 Working Memory Training in Type 2 Diabetes 

 

 

  

Page 67



  Page 45 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY – Parkinson’s Service 

I came to the Parkinson’s Unit through the Manager in my Doctors surgery, she referred me. I 

received a letter from the Parkinson’s Unit with an appointment date to see a doctor. I saw her a 

few months ago. My walking wasn’t so good then and she said it was Parkinson’s.  

 

They asked me to see the nurse next door. I am no good at drawing or maths and couldn’t get the 

figures right. The nurse may have thought I had something wrong with me as I couldn’t do it. It was 

nothing to do with my memory. The only thing that surprised or concerned me was the nurse was 

asking me maths questions I am not good at. They did not explain why they were doing it. It may 

have been good to explain why they were doing the test. The doctor organised to see me in 6 

months time. 

 

A therapist told me they would like me to go on a 6 week course. It would have been difficult for me 

as I have to get 2 buses to Edgware so they organised the hospital transport. They organised 

everything. I found the course extremely helpful. The therapist also came to my home. She arranged 

for someone to put a handrail under my mattress. I find it a big help. She also felt my coffee should 

be moved. She said my toilet frame should be raised but I felt it wasn’t necessary, she respected my 

decision. The Physio was excellent and Occupational Therapist was very good. Even the woman who 

does the tea was lovely. I phoned the helpline the other day. I spoke to a man who put me straight 

through to a Nurse who spent 30mins speaking with me. This was very helpful.  

 

When I saw the doctor she wanted to up my dose of Parkinson’s medication more and I said no. I 

don’t know if I need to up it now, but she respected my decision. I was worried the medication 

would need to keep going up. The Occupational Therapist involved me in everything. She left a 

couple of magazines with things I can buy. This was very helpful. 

 

To be honest, I do not like being a patient with Parkinson’s, but I must say the Parkinson’s Unit down 

to the receptionist, Occupational Therapist and Physiotherapist were all very kind, caring and nice. 

There are always staff around and the receptionist if there are any problems. I am still trying to 

come to terms with my Parkinson’s. I have accepted it as I have been told by 2 Doctors. It’s like 

anything I wish I didn’t have it as I get very tired in the afternoons and don’t sleep well at night.  

 

If people didn’t know the staff, it would be helpful if people said who they are, when they come into 

the waiting room. It may also be helpful to introduce the patients to each other. 

 

Learning from this story 

This person tells us a very positive story about their experience within the Parkinson’s service. We 

learn, however about the importance of staff introducing themselves and providing explanation. The 

trust joined a national campaign in March 2015; ‘Hello my name is’. This reminds staff to introduce 

themselves to patients as the start of making a vital human connection, beginning a therapeutic 

relationship and building trust between patients and healthcare staff. Patients are asked in our 

feedback surveys if care and treatment was explained in a way they could understand, and teams 

are provided with this feedback to inform their future practice. 

 

Page 68



  Page 46 of 71 
 

 

LOOKING BACK - PROGRESS AGAINST THE AGREED 2015-16 QUALITY 
PRIORITIES  

AT A GLANCE SUMMARY OF PROGRESS AGAINST 2015 – 16 QUALITY PRIORITIES 

Quality 

domain  

Priority Achieved Further Action 

Patient 

experience  

1. We will improve patient 
engagement in relation to 
working together in 
partnership to 
change/improve quality  

YES This work will be incorporated 

into the Trust Patient 

Experience Strategy 

Patient 

experience  

2. We will work to support a 
single point of access for 
patients with long term 
conditions  

PARTIALLY  

 

 

Preventing 

harm 

3. We will improve service 
users’ involvement in 
service improvement 
projects and safety 
campaigns 

 

YES This work will be incorporated 

into the Trust Patient 

Experience Strategy 

Preventing 

harm  

4. We will continue to 
reduce medication errors in 
practice  

YES We will continue to monitor 

medication errors as part of our 

Quality Dashboard and act 

where errors are noted 

Smart 

effective care  

5. The Trust will work to 
provide improved 
information publically for 
people to be able to make 
an assessment about how 
Central London Community 
Healthcare NHS Trust 
performs on quality 

  

PARTIALLY We will ensure that more 

information is available on our 

improved internet site 

Smart 

effective care  

6. We will improve the 
percentage of relevant NICE 
clinical guidance that have 
been assessed by eligible 
clinical teams  

YES The Trust will continue to 

monitor as part of our clinical 

effectiveness group reporting 

to the Quality Committee. 

 
  

Page 69



  Page 47 of 71 
 

 

PROGRESS AGAINST QUALITY ACCOUNT PRIORITY 1 - WE WILL IMPROVE PATIENT ENGAGEMENT 
IN RELATION TO WORKING TOGETHER IN PARTNERSHIP TO CHANGE/ IMPROVE QUALITY.  
 
Our approach to patient engagement was informed by our engagement strategy which translated 

into local plans for each Clinical Business Unit. In reviewing our strategy we have used the Trust 

Development Authority Patient Experience Framework to assess our current position and to 

determine our objectives for the next three years. Feedback from listening events has also been 

used to help inform our approach.  

 

We use a variety of approaches in capturing patient experience feedback to inform continuing 

service and quality improvement. These include the Friends and Family Test, Patient Reported 

Outcome Measures (PREM’s), patient stories, 15 steps challenge visits and listening events. The 

Trust also uses formal and informal complaints (Patient Advice and Liaison Service, PALs) and has an 

active Quality Stakeholder Reference Group to support us in understanding the quality of our 

patient’s experience. 

 

During the year, we have held a number of listening events within several of the boroughs in which 

we deliver care; Barnet, Hammersmith and Fulham, Kensington and Chelsea and Westminster. The 

purpose of these was to engage with as wide an audience as possible to share information about 

services and health related issues, ask what matters to patients most and to identify what is working 

well and what could be improved. In May 2015 four listening events were held across our boroughs 

to explore a positive patient experience. We enabled wider participation through telephone 

interviews and an online survey.  Our aim was to find out what aspects of the patient experience are 

so important that we should always get them right. In these discussions people identified what good 

care should look like and what we should always do. People also told us their views about 

involvement in care, health information and expectations of professional staff. Additionally, we 

sought people’s views on what we do well and what we could do better. 

From these discussions, the following themes emerged: the importance of consistency of healthcare 

professionals continuity of care and experienced front line staff), communication (Improvement in 

healthcare professionals communication skills and better training for telephone staff, being well-

prepared (reading notes in advance and knowing about the patient), telephone access and response 

(not easy for people to leave messages or have their calls returned) and incorporating patient 

feedback (making sure people’s feedback is used to improve what happens day to day). 

This feedback will enable us to develop ‘Always Events’; practices or behaviours that, when 

implemented reliably, ensure an optimal patient and family experience and improved outcomes. 

They provide clarity about what should happen for every person, every time they encounter our 

teams within CLCH. These Always Events will be incorporated into our new Quality Strategy and 

Engagement Strategy whilst each clinical division will develop local plans to embed these Always 

Events into their services. 

In November 2015 a series of listening events were held to engage specifically with children and 

young people, their parents or guardians. The purpose was to explore what makes a good 

experience, how it could be better and whether information provided by healthcare professionals is 

easy to understand. Engagement in this discussion was widened through paper or online surveys.  

Page 70



  Page 48 of 71 
 

 

Overall, it was seen that friendly, approachable and professional healthcare staff contribute to a 

good experience, and that information provided to them is largely clear and understandable. Areas 

for improvement related to poor communication or interaction with individual professionals at their 

appointment. In response to the feedback, local action plans have been developed in Children and 

Young Adult’s services and these themes have informed the revision of our Engagement Strategy. 

Our Continuous Improvement Programme (CIP) enabled our staff to take forward Rapid 

Improvement projects. The intensive 10 week course uses a combination of classroom teaching and 

practical work to provide our staff with the skills and confidence to apply methods to improve 

services and ultimately help provide better care for patients. A recent project focused on improving 

working practices between GPs and community nursing teams. A patient co-facilitated a training 

session for the programme participants and we have also had a patient participating in a Rapid 

Improvement Event for our staff. 

 
 
PROGRESS AGAINST QUALITY ACCOUNT PRIORITY 2 - WE WILL WORK TO SUPPORT A SINGLE 
POINT OF ACCESS (SPA) FOR PATIENTS WITH LONG TERM CONDITIONS 
 

All referrals come via the SPA. Referrals are then transferred in to the services for clinical triage 

every day. There is one phone number for patients to contact regarding appointments. Considerable 

work has taken place to improve communication between the SPA and our clinical services. This 

means that patient queries are signposted appropriately and promptly; there is now more 

integration between the SPA and our clinicians. Our Patient Advice and Liaison Service has been able 

to resolve appointments with callers promptly as a result of these changes and stakeholders, 

especially General Practitioners, find the system easier to use. 

 

PROGRESS AGAINST QUALITY ACCOUNT PRIORITY 3 - WE WILL IMPROVE SERVICE USERS’ 
INVOLVEMENT IN SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS AND SAFETY CAMPAIGNS 
As described elsewhere in detail in this account, CLCH joined the ‘Sign up to Safety’ campaign and 

was one of the first trusts to do so. We believe that listening to our patients, families, carers and 

staff is paramount and we want them to play an active and valued role in shaping and influencing 

how safety and improvement plans are developed. We know that the patient voice is a powerful 

force for change if listened to and learned from.  

 
 
  

Page 71



  Page 49 of 71 
 

 

PROGRESS AGAINST QUALITY ACCOUNT PRIORITY 4 - WE WILL CONTINUE TO REDUCE 
MEDICATION ERRORS IN PRACTICE. 
 
As can be seen in graph 15, there was a decline in the total number of reported medication errors in 
2015 - 16 with a 24% reduction reported in Q4 compared to Q1.   

Graph 15 – Total number of medication incidents 2015-16 

 

 

Of the 517 reported incidents, 30 were categorised as having caused a level of harm in 2015/16.  
This is a significant reduction from the baseline in 2012/13 where 156 incidents were reported as 
having caused a level of harm.   

During the year in question, there were a number of projects led by the medicine’s management 

team that helped reduce the number of medication incidents. These included:  

 The procurement and implementation of a remote fridge monitoring system and face to 

face cold-chain training sessions to tackle the cold chain incidents  

 A review of the medicines management training packages for staff with a new programme 

ready for rollout in 2016/17 

 A Medicines Optimisation Service (MOpS) service that was commissioned by Central and 

West London CCGs.  This service helps to keep patients safe in their homes and prevent 

avoidable medicine-related hospital admissions by undertaking clinical medication reviews 

in patient’s homes  

 A continuation of the  audit programme focussing on Safe and Secure Handling of Medicines 

at approximately 200 community clinics and bedded services, Omitted Doses and 

Antimicrobial Audits 

 An increased reporting on errors on transfer from secondary to primary care with feedback 

to the relevant Acute Trusts   

 A review of the Clinical Pharmacy services at bedded rehabilitation units with a change in 

the model at one unit and support on the roll out of a new drug chart at Barnet bedded 

services 

 A review of Datix incident reporting and refining of categories within the medication field on 

Datix to help capture more accurate data  

 

143 144 
121 

109 

0

50

100

150

200

Q1 2015/16 Q2 2015/16 Q3 2015/16 Q4 2015/16

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
e

d
ic

at
io

n
 

in
ci

d
e

n
ts

 

Total number of medication incidents 
2015/2016  

Number of
incidents

Page 72



  Page 50 of 71 
 

 

 
PROGRESS AGAINST QUALITY ACCOUT PRIORITIY 5 - THE TRUST WILL WORK TO PROVIDE 
IMPROVED INFORMATION PUBLICALLY FOR PEOPLE TO BE ABLE TO MAKE AN ASSESSMENT 
ABOUT HOW CENTRAL LONDON COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE NHS TRUST PERFORMS ON QUALITY 
 
We are awaiting the delivery of the new electronic dashboard. This is a quality dashboard which will 

be available on the Trust’s intranet.  One in-patient ward now has a quality board in place that gives 

members of the public information on patient experience and safety.  

 

PROGRESS AGAINST QUALITY ACCOUNT PRIORITY 6 - WE WILL IMPROVE THE PERCENTAGE OF 
RELEVANT NICE CLINICAL GUIDANCE THAT HAVE BEEN ASSESSED BY ELIGIBLE CLINICAL TEAMS  
 
During its monthly meetings, the NICE (explain?) Core Group, which is chaired by the Medical 

Director and consists of professional and clinical leads, systematically reviewed all NICE guidelines 

published in 2015/2016 while aiming to meet the Trust’s key performance indicator that all 

specialities are fully compliant with relevant NICE guidelines within 6 months of publication.  

 

In the process, 30 guidelines were considered relevant to the Trust and were subsequently 

circulated to specific clinical services for information or for assessment by means of a gap analysis 

tool using the NICE Baseline Assessment form (NBAF) electronic system. Where there was a gap, 

services were expected to develop action plans to ensure compliance with attention being paid to 

whether the services needed to work beyond the boundaries of their own service or required 

resources. Completion evidence was provided at NICE Core Group meetings. 

 

Page 73



  Page 51 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY - Health Visiting 

I said to your Nursery Nurse that because we are a 2 mummy family we have found while people try 
to be inclusive and while I suppose it is a relatively new concept in terms of society, we have had a 
really relaxed experience at your clinic. There has been no stumbling over words or people second 
guessing or trying to include us as a separate entity. It has been a very natural inclusive experience 
and that is really important for us because it’s really important for us that our little girl grows up in a 
society that doesn’t treat her and her family any differently.  
 
The Nursery Nurse has been totally invaluable to us. Actually we got ourselves into the habit after 
baby had her injections because she wouldn’t settle on her own so she was sleeping between us and 
then we got stuck. We couldn’t get her back to her cot and the Nursery Nurse advised us and we 
have got her back in her cot now. She has been really lovely.  
 
The first time parents group has made a massive difference it has saved us so much ‘googling’ which 
is just a nightmare, just knowing that other people have the same situation as you. We are lucky we 
have a really supportive family but I would imagine for people that don’t, we look at each other and 
say how do they do it on their own.  
 
Because baby was premature it has been quite interesting coming to the baby clinics and next time 
we weigh her she will probably be about 5 stone!! because she has really caught up. But it has been 
important to us to track her progress perhaps more than someone else.  
 
What is really good is that within the group all the mums have different experiences. A good 
example is when she was going for her injections - I said ‘my baby has her injections tomorrow’ and 
one mum said to me ‘don’t forget to buy the calpol and straight away another mum swooped in and 
said ‘my doctor said don’t do it unless she has got a fever’.  So I was faced with 2 opinions and I said 
‘thanks I will just ask my nurse’ and then I spoke to the Nursery Nurse because I thought she is a 
professional and I will take her guidance.  
 
The only thing that frustrates me about the clinic is having to leave your buggy downstairs which I 
can understand but that is my only issue but they are making it accessible for people.  
 

 

Learning from this story 

This story identifies a positive experience of the service, but the person expressed their initial 

frustration as buggies need to be left downstairs at this clinic. The staff have recognised this concern 

and have put a system in place to provide locks so that these can be secured whilst people attend 

their appointment 

  

Page 74



  Page 52 of 71 
 

 

LOOKING FORWARD - OUR QUALITY PRIORITIES FOR 2016-17 
 
In this section we detail our quality improvement priorities for the coming year. Our Chief Nurse and 
Director of Quality Governance, Louise Ashley has overall responsibility for the development of our 
Quality Account. The priority leads within the account are as follows:  
 
Positive Patient Experience:  Ms Holly Ashforth, Director of Patient Experience  

Preventing Harm:  Professor Charlie Sheldon, Director of Patient Safety  

Smart, Effective Care:  Dr Joanne Medhurst, Medical Director 

 

Progress against our priorities will be reported to the Quality Committee on a quarterly basis as part 

of our comprehensive quality report.  

 

 

QUALITY PRIORITY 1 – POSITIVE PATIENT EXPERIENCE, PREVENTING HARM – DEVELOPING 
A QUALITY ALERT PROCESS FOR STAKEHOLDERS 
 
We will develop a mechanism by which clinicians in other organisations can quickly alert CLCH to 

issues about our service; either those experienced themselves or issues reported to them by 

patients. We will establish a secure email system for these alerts and will set targets for reply and 

resolution of these issues. 

 

What will success look like?  

 

In quarter one we will communicate with referrers to our service regarding the process for using the 

alert system. The alert system will be implemented from quarter two.  Alerts to the central inbox will 

be responded to by close of next working day. Logged and monitored.  

 

A summary of the alerts received will be included in the weekly incident and complaint pack for the 

Executive Leadership team. A quarterly summary of quality alerts will be reported to the relevant 

CCG as part of the quality monitoring process. 

 

 

QUALITY PRIORITY 2 – POSITIVE PATIENT EXPERIENCE, PREVENTING HARM - 
IMPLEMENTING A QUALITY EARLY WARNING SYSTEM 
 

The Trust’s quarterly Quality Report and monthly Quality Key Performance Indicator (KPI) analyse 

progress against all aspects of quality performance, including the Quality Strategy and Quality 

Account. The reports currently use funnel charts to identify outlying teams and the action being 

taken to support them.  Within the report there are exception reports for any ‘red’ areas. 

Discussions at Trust Board and subcommittees look to triangulate information from performance 

reports and KPIs with professional judgement and insight from walkabouts and listening events. If 

there are ongoing concerns regarding any of the indicators, members of the Board can request 

further deep dives into areas of concern. An example of this is the community nursing teams in one 

of the Boroughs who had appeared as ‘red’ on several indicators for staffing, appraisals, pressure 

ulcers and falls.  

  

Page 75



  Page 53 of 71 
 

 

In 2016/2017 we will develop a set of red flags to compliment this work and to provide an early 

warning system that will identify issues ahead of the reporting systems, therefore allowing very 

immediate actions to be taken prior to having to consider instigating a quality action team. This will 

allow us to maintain a spotlight on quality in the expanded organisation. 

 

WHAT INDICATORS WILL WE USE? 
 
Preventing Harm 
A 10% increase in incidents causing harm (moderate or above) 
Any new serious incidents reported 
 
Positive Patient Experience 
An increase in complaints 
A drop in FFT score 
 
Smart, Effective Care 
Reduction in clinical outcome reporting 
Any care/ clinical related internal serious incidents 
 
Workforce 

Absence of a team leader for >1 month 

Vacancy rate above 12% 

 

 

WHAT WILL SUCCESS LOOK LIKE? 

 

How will the system work? 

A red flag report will be triggered if: 

i.  a team has 2 flags or greater. 

ii. A team has 1 indicator red > 2 months 

 

How will we act upon Red Flags? 

Departments/teams with a red flag will be asked to put a risk on the risk register and provide 

monthly progress as part of their report to the Patient Safety & Risk Group. The risk will be managed 

with an action plan in the usual way. 

 

Support for Teams 

It is expected that teams with a red flag will have assistance from the Divisional ADQ (explain) in 

drawing up plans. The appropriate Director (for example HR Director, Director of Patient Safety 

should ensure that the team lead has access to their specialist team). 

 

Reporting of Red Flags 

The red flag report will be reported to the Quality Committee monthly and will also be highlighted 

monthly at the Executive Leadership Team Meeting. 

 

Commissioners will receive a report on relevant red flag teams as part of the monthly quality 

reporting and updates on action plans and progress as necessary. 

 

Page 76



  Page 54 of 71 
 

 

QUALITY PRIORITY 3 – SMART, EFFECTIVE CARE - WE WILL ENSURE THE BALANCE 

BETWEEN ASSURING SAFE EFFECTIVE CARE AND ENABLING SYSTEMATIC IMPROVEMENT 

OF SERVICE QUALITY. 

 

What indicators will we use? 

 % new NICE guidance reviewed, assessed and implemented within 12 month deadline 

 % completion of actions from Audits within deadline (TBC) 

 % services reporting clinical outcomes (via reporting platform) 

 Number of staff been trained via Continuous Improvement Programme  

 % Continuous Improvement graduates participating in improvement in past 12 months 

 

 

WHAT WILL SUCCESS LOOK LIKE? 

 

Monitoring 

 The Trust will monitor the adoption of best practice through the monthly assessment of new 

NICE guidance and its implementation.  

 

 Every Clinical Business Unit (CBU) will undertake clinical audits to assess adherence to best 

practice standards. 

 

 All services will monitor patient outcomes to understand the effectiveness of clinical 

interventions. 

 

Development 

 The Trust will develop capacity and capability for quality improvement through the delivery 

of the CLCH Continuous Improvement Training Programme. 

 

 Graduates of the Continuous Improvement Programme will participate in improvement 

projects annually.  

 

 Supporting services to identify improvement opportunities through effective analysis of 

quality data. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 77



  Page 55 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY – District nursing case management 

I left school when I was sixteen; I was brought up in the slums in Glasgow and joined the army, 

moved all over.  I used to go to hospital a lot. I had 2 strokes, couldn’t walk and couldn’t talk. In 2004 

I had a dislocated disk. It was a lot to deal with. 

 

I started to see ‘A’ for the past 3 or 4 weeks I think. Before that it was different people. I like ‘B’ she 

is very nice, but she doesn’t talk much.  ‘A’ has more conversation with me. In the past people came 

to do a job, but now it feels like they care about me.  ‘A’ cares about me more.  I feel like she listens, 

she understands me better.  I didn’t want to attend the meeting at the hospital. Doctors and nurses 

don’t listen to me in hospital so there is no point in me going.  I was happy for ‘A’ to explain 

everything on my behalf as she understands me.  I was able to tell her how I wanted my care to be 

given and ‘A’ listened and answered all the questions I had.  I am able to tell her what I want in my 

care and I can also tell her if it’s not working. 

 

I’ve read the plan crisis plan and I agree with it. I have given the warden of the sheltered 

accommodation a copy of the plan and I know where my crisis plan is.  The plan is very easy to 

understand. The staff are very committed and helpful.  I still want to socialise and they are helping 

me, referring me to the groups at St Charles and other local groups. 

 

The ambulance has come to see me, but I didn’t want to go to hospital. With the plan I was happy to 

stay at home.  I feel more confident talking but I get pain after talking for a long time my speech gets 

gibberish.  I don’t go to hospital anymore as I don’t like hospitals, and staff in hospital bullied me.  

Having a Community Matron made my care more individualised.  My confidence has increased and I 

feel more respected, not like in hospital.  I feel I have better treatment now.  The crisis plans are 

great and people care more.  I can use the plan and now I have a rescue pack.  The patch makes it 

very easy for my pain.  I do it myself and change it every Friday at 3pm.  It is very easy and they 

taught me. 

 

Hospitals are not nice places to be, so the crisis care plan is good.  I’m glad this is bringing change.  

Changes are for the better.  I love change that is the secret to survival. 

 

Learning from this story 

We will aim to link the issues raised in this story around communication with the Trust’s work on 

compassion (one of the 6cs) and `knowing you matter - see me, know me, connect with me’ 

  

Page 78



  Page 56 of 71 
 

 

WHOM DID WE INVOLVE AND ENGAGE WITH TO DETERMINE OUR QUALITY 

PRIORITIES? 
This year we asked members of the public our users and staff to proposed areas for consideration 

under our 3 campaign headings.  All the comments made are considered by the Trust and are taken 

forward where appropriate.  

 

In response to this consultation we received 32 comments; not all of which proposed quality 

priorities.  As might be expected from an open question, there was no single opinion as to which 

areas CLCH should take forward as their quality priorities.  Responses were received about a number 

of issues ranging from the quality of reception staff and administration staff; the time it takes to get 

an appointment; medication errors, and staff training.  All the issues raised (where relevant to CLCH) 

are looked at via the performance scorecard.  

 

In some cases the replies referred to acute or mental health care trusts or the care that had been 

provided by a GP – all of which were not applicable to CLCH.  

 

In addition, we wrote to the Chairs of Healthwatch, Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCG) Chairs asking for suggestions to be included in the account and we also 

reviewed the proposed quality priorities with the Quality Stakeholder Reference Group (QSRG) as 

part of the consultation on the draft quality account.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 79



  Page 57 of 71 
 

 

PATIENT STORY – Finchley Walk in Centre 

 I burnt my lower left leg on a motorbike exhaust whilst on holiday in Poland. I attended a local 

chemist who sold me an antiseptic cream which l applied. On my return home l had and abscess. I 

attended Barnet Hospital and was given a course of antibiotics. I was referred to your service by my 

GP for a review and change of dressing of my wound. I was informed by the GP twice that they do 

not do dressings at the surgery although there is a nurse at the surgery. I wondered why the nurse at 

the GP surgery could not review and change my dressing.  I was not given any choice of a local Walk 

in Centre to attend but chose to come to the Finchley Walk in Centre. 

I travelled there by bus and when l reached the main entrance I noticed the building was new. It had 

a car park facility which was free although l don’t drive. The waiting room was packed with patients 

and I was informed the waiting time was 4 hours on my first visit, but then the total time from 

registering to being discharged was only two hours and today I was seen with 45 minutes.  

My main concern is about the waiting time and too many people at times. I am lucky to be within 

the Finchley Walk in Centre catchment area and would highly recommend it. I am grateful and 

appreciative of the way I was treated by the staff. The care has been outstanding at every level from 

the receptionist to the nursing staff.  

 

Learning from this story 

The key issue for this person related to reliable information about waiting times within the Walk in 

Centre. To address this issue, we now have display screens which are updated regularly with 

information about current waiting times.  We have introduced a new numbered queuing system for 

patients who arrive in the morning before opening time and a ‘Triage and Treat’ system has been 

introduced during busy times whilst doctors provide increased hours within the Walk in Centre. 

 

 

  

Page 80



  Page 58 of 71 
 

 

REVIEW OF QUALITY PERFORMANCE - REQUIRED INFORMATION  

The following is information that has not been reported on elsewhere in this account but that is 
required to be included by the Department of Health.  

CARE QUALITY COMMISSION  

The Trust was inspected by the Care Quality Commission in April 2015.  

CQC findings – Good and Outstanding Practice to be replicated across the Trust 

• The tissue viability service had developed innovative practice and had taken part in 

international research and the development of NICE guidance 

• The nutrition and dietetics service provided excellent, patient centred care based on leading 

and setting standards in dietetics and nutrition including NICE guidance development and 

facilities for patients.  The service participated in international research and publication 

• In Adults services: 

The service responded proactively to reported incidences of pressure ulcers through training,  

Communication and distribution of resource packs to residential home staff 

 

Multi-disciplinary, patient centred care was evident and involved a range of specialist staff 

involved in joint visits to the patient.  External partners included GPs, housing and social 

services, police, the prison service and mental health 

 

The turnaround work undertaken on Jade Ward was noted to have effected significant 

improvements in delivery of care 

CQC findings – areas for improvement (must do’s) 

• End of Life Care services were caring and responsive although required improvement to safe, 

effective and well-led domains 

• Children’s services were caring, effective, responsive and well-led although required 

improvement in the safe domain 

• Recruitment and retention of staff across a number of areas 

• End of Life Care services were caring and responsive although required improvement to safe, 

effective and well-led domains 

• Children’s services were caring, effective, responsive and well-led although required 

improvement in the safe domain 

• Recruitment and retention of staff across a number of areas 

Page 81



  Page 59 of 71 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



  Page 60 of 71 
 

 

 
 

 

  

Page 83



  Page 61 of 71 
 

 

As can be from the grid above, CLCH was rated as requires improvement in the safe domain. This was 

mainly due to vacancies in some services.  Like most trusts in London, CLCH is affected by the 

shortage of available nursing staff.  In response to this, CLCH has put in place a number of initiatives 

to address this – these include a recruitment summit, chaired by the CN to look at innovative ways 

of trying to recruit hard to reach groups and international recruitment.   

 

 
CQUIN PAYMENT FRAMEWORK  
A proportion of CLCH’s income in 2015/16 was conditional on achieving quality improvement and 
innovation goals agreed between CLCH and the three CCGs which make up North West London 
(NWL) Clinical Commissioning Groups and Barnet Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). 
Our achievements against the CQUIN goals for 2015/16 are detailed in the following tables: 
 
(NB these are currently still draft)  
 
North West London (NWL) 
 

CQUIN  Goal Plan 

15/16    

£ 

Forecast   15/16 

 

£ 

Dementia  Staff Training in CLCH and in Care Homes 

Carers’ survey 

£169,000 £118,000 

Shared patient 

record and real 

time information 

system  

Implementation and roll out of shared care records 

across all services- Year two of two year CQUIN- 

Emphasise full roll out and implementation- 

Interoperability is Key 

£439,000 £439,000 

Diagnostic Cloud 

across the NW 

London health 

economy  

Introduction of the Diagnostic Cloud across CLCH 

services. This is an IT system enabling staff to view a 

patients diagnostic results across providers and to 

order diagnostic tests 

£639,000 £639,000 

Tissue Viability  To standardize and improve the quality and 
effectiveness of Tissue Viability services across 
Central London, West London and Hammersmith & 
Fulham CCGs 
 

£217,000 £174,000 

Supporting 7 Day 

Working 

Analysis of current 7 day working requirements and 

plan for extending 7day working to support a 7 day 

health system and discharge from hospital 

£150,000 £150,000 

Continuous 

Improvement 

 £80,000 £80,000 

NWL TOTAL   1,914,592 1,425,700 

 

Page 84



  Page 62 of 71 
 

 

 
 

CQUIN Goal  Plan 15/16 

TOTAL £ 

Plan  

£TOTAL 

Value based 

commissioning 

(Long term 

condition  

management)  

Reduce unplanned admissions into hospital or 

attendances at A&E for patients over 65 through 

crisis care planning 

206,966 157,294 

Children’s Safe 

Transition into 

Adult Services  

Increased attendance at multidisciplinary 

/professional meetings.  Increased patients with key 

transition planning evident within their care plan.  

68,989 34,494 

Dementia  Dementia awareness training (1) and screening (2) (1) 41,393  

(2)  27,595 

(1) 31,046 

(2) 24,837 

Tissue Viability Improved access to leg ulcer clinics 344,943 155,225 

NCL TOTAL   689,886 402,896 

 
 NHS England 

CQUIN Goal  Plan 15/16 

TOTAL £ 

Forecast 15/16 

£ 

Diabetic 

retinopathy – 

uptake of 

screening 

services 

Increase uptake of screening services  

(April 16 to Oct 16 only) 

£7, 400 

 

£7,400 

Early years – 

CHIS to CHIS  

To create an interoperable Child Health Information 

System (CHIS) across London and  improve 

documentation of Hep B vaccinations for all children 

and of all immunisations for  looked after children 

(LAC) 

 

£6,100 

 

£6,100 

Child 

immunisations 

co-ordination   

 

To co-ordinate immunisations across CLCH 

 

£3,800 £3,800 

Offender health 

– TB screening 

(Non digital) 

TB screening; Escort and Bedwatch Audit; Ensuring 

adequate staffing levels 

£195,000 £195,000 

NHSE TOTAL   £212,300 £212,300  

 

ALL TOTAL  £2, 816,778 £2, 040 896 

 

Page 85



  Page 63 of 71 
 

 

 

DATA QUALITY  
CLCH recognises that Information Governance which has as a component high quality data is 
essential for the effective delivery of patient care and to enable continuous improvements in care 
provision. This includes ensuring that personal data is treated in the strictest confidence, managed 
securely and is shared for the purposes of direct care in line with the Caldicott principles. The Trust 
is fully committed to improving the quality of the data in use across all of its services. The following 
is a summary of the actions that CLCH has taken to improve its data quality.  
 
CLCH recognises that good quality data is essential for the effective delivery of patient care and to 

enable continuous improvements in the quality of this care.  The Trust is therefore fully committed 

to improving the quality of the clinical and administrative data in use across all of its services. The 

following is a summary of the actions that CLCH has taken to improve its data quality during the 

2015/2016 year: 

 The Data Quality Strategy was revised and re-issued in late 2015. This supports the already 
published Data Quality Policy 

 A limited number of self-service data quality reports are now available on the CLCH Hub 
(intranet). These reports will increase in number during 2016/2017 

 Additional reports covering specific areas of data quality are sent out on a weekly basis to 
service managers 

 We have started to make use of third-party data quality reports from the Health and Social 
Care Information Centre (HSCIC) relating to submissions to the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) 

 

In addition, a Performance and Information Data Quality Operations Group (PIDQOG) was 

established during the year, chaired by a Divisional Director of Operations. In the context of data 

quality this group has three specific aims: 

 Support the Accountable Officer for Data Quality and Data Validation (the Chief Executive) 
and provide assurance that the quality of data within the Trust is of a high standard for 
accurate decision making and reporting 

 To act as a central focal point for Data Quality matters within the Trust, from both a clinical 
and corporate services, including having ownership and responsibility for reviewing data 
quality issues and developing action plans to address those issues 

 
To be responsible for supporting the development and implementation of corporate strategies, 
policies and procedures for data quality 
 
NHS number and General Medical Practice Code Validity 
CLCH submitted records during 2014-15 to the Secondary Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital 
Episode Statistics which are included in the latest published data. The percentage of records in the 
published data which included the patient’s valid NHS number was 94.6% for accident and 
emergency care. The percentage of records in the published data which included the patient’s valid 
General Medical Practice code was 96.5% for accident and emergency care.  
 
CLCH did not submit records during 2015/16 to the Secondary Uses service for inclusion in the 
Hospital Episode Statistics for either admitted patient care, or for outpatient care. 
 
 
Clinical coding error rate 
CLCH was not subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit during 2015/16. 

Page 86



  Page 64 of 71 
 

 

 
 
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE TOOLKIT AND REVIEW OF SERVICES 
The Trust has maintained Level 2 compliance against the Information Governance Toolkit and 

achieved a score of 76%. This represents overall satisfactory compliance which has been confirmed 

by the Trust auditors. 

 

REVIEW OF SERVICES  

During 2015/16 CLCH provided and or sub contracted 56 NHS services. CLCH has reviewed all the 

data available to them on the quality of care in 100% services. The income generated by the NHS 

services reviewed in 2015/16 represents 100 percent of the total income generated from the 

provision of NHS services by CLCH for 2015/16. 

 

STAFF SURVEY RESULTS1 

Key Score 26 (KS19 in 2014 survey) – Percentage of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or 
abuse from staff in the last 12 months 
 
2014 Score – 28% 
2015 Score – 24% 
  
This represents an improvement of 4% but it is still above the national average for community trusts 
which is 21%.   
 
(The figure above combines results from two separate questions as follows:  
In the last 12 months how many times have you personally experienced harassment, bullying or 
abuse at work from:  
 
Managers    88% said “never”   Community Trust average: 89% 
 
Colleagues 82% said “never”   Community Trust average: 86%) 
 
 
Key Score  27– Percentage of staff believing the trust provides equal opportunities for career 
progression or promotion 
 
In 2015 83% said yes.       Community Trust average: 89% 
In 2014:  82% said yes. 

Our Plans for improvement: 
We have identified bullying and harassment hotspots by looking at staff survey data at service level 

and we are offering workshops to those teams with scores significantly higher than the trust 

average.  This has proved useful in the past because it has helped team members develop effective 

working relationships. 

                                                           
1
 (results for indicators KS19 (percentage of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from staff in the 

last 12 months) and KS27 (percentage believing that trust provides equal opportunities for career progression 
or promotion) for the Workforce Race Equality Standard 

 

Page 87



  Page 65 of 71 
 

 

Additionally we are looking at options to prevent bullying and harassment at an early stage.  These 

include developing the mediation service and raising its profile. We are also recruiting and training 

additional mediators and anticipate that four new mediators will be trained in May.  We are also 

encouraging the use of the restorative practice approach within teams, which again aims to repair 

relationships as an alternative to using the formal bullying and harassment policy.  

Finally we are building management capability through a range of management training options 

such as the clinical team leaders’ development programme as well as a course designed specifically 

for managers who are new to management.  We are also looking at how to provide training for 

managers to help them promote health and wellbeing in their teams, with a particular emphasis on 

how to spot and handle mental health issues.  While none of this is specifically about reducing 

bullying and harassment, we believe that it will help develop a constructive and supportive team 

environment which provides a good basis resolving concerns at an early stage. 

A workforce race equality standard has been completed by CLCH and shared with BME Staff. A board 

seminar is planned for April 2016 and a work plan will be formulated following the seminar.  

  

Page 88



  Page 66 of 71 
 

 

STATEMENTS  

HEALTHWATCH 

COMMISIONERS  

HEALTH OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

(These will be added when received).  

 

FEEDBACK AND FURTHER INFORMATON  
Now that you have read our Quality Account, we would really like to know what you think, how we 

can improve and how you would like to be involved in developing our quality accounts in future.  

We will be putting a short feedback survey on our website which should only take few minutes to 

complete.  

 

Go to www.clch.nhs.uk and fill out the survey online. Alternatively you will be able to download a 

copy of the survey, fill it in and post it to:  

Patient and public engagement Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust 

6th Floor 64 Victoria Street London  

SW1E 6QP  

 

Please write to us if you would like us to send you a paper copy using the address above or via email 

to communications@clch.nhs.uk alternatively, if you or someone you know would like to provide 

feedback in a different format or request a copy of the survey by phone, please call our 

communications team on 020 7798 1420.  

 

Further advice and information  

If you would like to talk to someone about your experiences of CLCH services or if you would like to 

discuss a service, please contact our patient advice and liaison service (PALS) in confidence via email 

clchpals@nhs.net or on 0800 368 0412.  

 
Useful contacts and links  
CLCH  
Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)  
Email pals@clch.nhs.uk  
Tel 0800 368 0412  
Switchboard for service contacts Tel 020 7798 1300  
Local Healthwatch  

Central West London Healthwatch 
For Hammersmith and Fulham, Kensington and Chelsea and Westminster Email 
healthwatchcwl@hestia.org Tel 020 8968 7049  
 
Barnet Healthwatch 
Tel 020 8364 8400 x218 or 219  
www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk  

 

Page 89

mailto:pals@clch.nhs.uk
mailto:healthwatchcwl@hestia.org
http://www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk/


  Page 67 of 71 
 

 

Local Clinical Commissioning Groups  
Barnet CCG 

Tel 020 8952 2381 www.barnetccg.nhs.uk   

Central London CCG 

Tel 020 3350 4321 www.centrallondonccg.nhs.uk   

 

Hammersmith and Fulham CCG 

Tel 020 7150 8000  

www.hammersmithfulhamccg.nhs.uk   

 

Harrow CCG 

Tel 020 8422 6644 

www.harrowccg.nhs.uk 

 

Merton CCG 

Tel 020 3668 1221 

www. mertonccg.nhs.uk 

 

West London CCG 

Tel 020 7150 8000  

www.westlondonccg.nhs.uk   

 

Local councils  

Barnet 

Tel 020 8359 2000 

 www.barnet.gov.uk   

 

Harrow 

Tel: 020 8863 5611 

www.harrow.gov.uk 

 

Hammersmith and Fulham 

Tel 020 8748 3020 

www.lbhf.gov.uk   

 

Kensington and Chelsea  

Tel: 020 7361 3000  

www.rbkc.gov.uk   

 

Merton 

Tel: 020 8274 4901 

www.merton.gov.uk 

 

Westminster 

Tel 020 7641 6000  

www.westminster.gov.uk   

Page 90

http://www.barnetccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.centrallondonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.hammersmithfulhamccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.westlondonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/
http://www.rbkc.gov.uk/
http://www.merton.gov.uk/
http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


  Page 68 of 71 
 

 

Healthcare organisations  

 

Care Quality Commission  

Tel 03000 61 61 61 www.cqc.org.uk   

 

NHS Choices 

www.nhs.uk   

 

 
GLOSSARY  
 
15 Steps Challenge  
This is a tool to help staff, service users and others to work together to identify improvements that 
can be made to enhance the service user experience. The idea is to see the ward through a service 
user's eyes. Members of the 15 step challenge team walk onto a ward or residential unit and take 
note of their first impressions. 
 
Baseline data 
This is the initial collection of data which serves as a basis for comparison with the subsequently 
acquired data.  
 
Being Open 
Being Open is a set of principles that healthcare staff should use when communicating with patients, 
their families and carers following a patient safety incident. 
 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
The CQC is the independent regulator of health and adult social care services in England. It ensures 
that the care provided by hospitals, dentists, ambulances, care homes and home-care agencies 
meets government standards of quality and safety. 
 
Catheter 
A catheter is a thin flexible tube which is inserted into the body, usually along the tube through 
which urine passes (the urethra) or through a hole in the abdomen. The catheter is then guided into 
the bladder, allowing urine to flow through it and into a drainage bag. 
 
Clinical commissioning groups (CCGs)  
CCGs are independent statutory bodies, governed by members who are the GP practices in their 
area.  A CCG has control of a local health care budget and commissions healthcare services on behalf 
of the local population.  
 
Compassion in practice  
Compassion in practice is a three year vision and strategy for nursing, midwifery and care staff, 
drawn up by the Chief Nursing Officer for England and launched in December 2012.  
 
Commissioning 
This is the planning and purchasing of NHS services to meet the health needs of a local population. It 
involves deciding what services are needed, and ensuring that they are provided.  
 
Commissioning for quality and innovation payment framework (CQUIN) 
The CQUIN payment framework enables commissioners to reward excellence. It links a proportion of 
a healthcare provider's income to the achievement of local quality improvement goals.  

Page 91

http://www.cqc.org.uk/
http://www.nhs.uk/


  Page 69 of 71 
 

 

Exemplar ward 
These are wards where consistently high quality care and innovation in clinical practice has been 
demonstrated  
 
Francis report 
The Francis enquiry report was published in February 2013 and examined the causes of the failings 
in care at Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust between 2005-2009. The report made 290 
recommendations 
 
Incident 
An event or circumstance that could have resulted, or did result, in unnecessary damage, loss or 
harm such as physical or mental injury to a patient, staff, visitors or members of the public. 
 
Key performance indicators (KPIs) 
Key performance indicators help define and measure progress towards organisational goals. As the 
primary means of communicating performance across the organisation, KPIs focus on a range of 
areas. Once an organisation has analysed its mission, identified all its stakeholders and defined its 
goals, KPIs offer a way of measuring progress toward these goals 
 
National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) 
Nice provides independent, authoritative and evidence-based guidance on the most effective ways 
to prevent, diagnose and treat disease and ill health, reducing inequalities and variation.  
 
National Health Service Litigation Authority (NHSLA) 
The NHSLA manages negligence and other claims against the NHS in England on behalf of its 
member organizations.  
 
Never event 
These are are very serious, largely preventable patient safety incidents that should not occur if the 
relevant preventative measures have been put in place.  A list of incidents described as Never Events 
is published by the Department of Health.  
 
National reporting and learning system (NRLS)  
The NRLS receives confidential reports of patient safety incidents from healthcare staff across 
England and Wales. Clinicians and safety experts analyse these reports to identify common risks to 
patients and opportunities to improve patient safety. 
 
Palliative care 
Palliative care is an approach that improves the quality of life of patients and their families facing the 
problems associated with terminal illness. This is through the prevention and relief of suffering by 
means of early identification and excellent assessment and treatment of pain and other problems 
that could be physical, psychosocial or spiritual in nature. 
 
Patient led inspection of the care environment (PLACE) 
PLACE is the system for assessing the quality of the patient environment. PLACE assessments will see 
local people go into hospitals as part of teams to assess how the environment supports patients' 
privacy and dignity, food, cleanliness and general building maintenance.  
 
Patient pathways 
The patient pathway gives an outline of what is likely to happen on the patient’s journey and can be 
used both for patient information and for planning services as a template pathway can be created 
for common services and operations. You can think of it as a timeline, on which every event relating 
to treatment can be entered.  

Page 92



  Page 70 of 71 
 

 

Patient safety thermometer or NHS safety thermometer 
The NHS Safety Thermometer provides a ‘temperature check’ on harm. The tool measures four high-
volume patient safety issues (pressure ulcers, falls, urinary tract infection - in patients with a 
catheter - and venous thromboembolism). The data is used at national, regional and local level 
(organisational as well as at ward and team level) to support quality improvements through ensuring 
harm free care. 
 
Patient reported experience measures (PREMS) 
These are more commonly known as patient surveys and can include paper based surveys; the use 
of electronic kiosks; hand held devices; and telephone surveys  
 
Patient reported outcomes measures (PROMs)  
Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) are a means of collecting information on the 
effectiveness of care delivered to NHS patients as perceived by the patients themselves. 
 
Pressure ulcers 
A pressure ulcer is localised injury to the skin and/or underlying tissue usually over a bony 
prominence, as a result of pressure, or pressure in combination with shear. A number of 
contributing or confounding factors are also associated with pressure ulcers.  Pressure ulcers are 
graded according to severity, with grade one being the least severe and grade four the most severe. 
 
Root cause analysis (RCA) 
A systematic investigation technique that looks beyond the individuals concerned and seeks to 
understand the underlying causes and environmental context in which the incident happened. 
 
Serious incident 
In summary these are incidents that occurred in NHS funded services and resulted in one or more of 
the following: unexpected or avoidable death; serious harm; allegations of abuse; a prevention of 
continuation of the provision of healthcare services; or a never event. 
 
Tissue viability 
The literal meaning of tissue viability refers to the preservation of tissue. The tissue viability service 
is a nurse-led specialist service whose aim is to promote the healing of compromised tissue. 
 
Venous thromboembolism (VTE) 
Venous thromboembolism is a condition in which a blood clot (thrombus) forms in a vein. It most 
commonly occurs in the deep veins of the legs; this is called deep vein thrombosis. The thrombus 
may dislodge from its site of origin to travel in the blood – a phenomenon called embolism. 
  

Page 93



  Page 71 of 71 
 

 

10. APPENDICES  
 
APPENDIX 1 – COMPLAINTS ANNUAL REPORT  
 
(This will be attached to final Quality Account).  

Page 94



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
HEALTH, ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SOCIAL 

INCLUSION POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

14TH JUNE 2016 

 

CLINICAL SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS - PROPOSED NEW PATHWAYS FOR 
ACUTE MEDICINE AND CHEST PAIN PATIENTS 
 

Executive Director for Adult Social Care and Health - Liz Bruce 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Liz Bruce – Executive Director for Adult Social Care and Health 
 

Report Author: Kayode Adewumi – Head of 
Governance and Scrutiny 

Contact Details: Tel: 020 8753 2499 
Email – kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. The attached report from Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust (‘the Trust’) 

sets out the case for change and the proposals developed by Trust clinicians for 
improving the current acute medicine and chest pain patient pathways.  The 
Trust wishes to engage as widely as possible on the proposals during a planned 
engagement period. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. The Committee is asked to comment on the proposals set out in the attached 

report.  
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust Board at its July public meeting will 
receive a report on the feedback from the engagement process before making a 
final decision on implementation of the new pathways.  
 

4. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT -None 
 
Report Contact Officer: Mick Fisher| Head of Public Affairs| Imperial College 
Healthcare NHS Trust, Email: mick.fisher@imperial.nhs.uk | Phone: 0203 312 5586, 
Website: www.imperial.nhs.uk | Twitter: @ImperialNHS 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8

mailto:mick.fisher@imperial.nhs.uk
http://www.imperial.nhs.uk/
http://twitter.com/ImperialNHS


1 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

 
 

Clinical service improvements - proposed new pathways for acute medicine 
and chest pain patients 
 
Report from Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust to the London Borough of 
Hammersmith & Fulham Health, Adult Social Care and Social Inclusion Policy 
and Accountability Committee 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
This report to the Health, Adult Social Care and Social Inclusion Policy and Accountability 
Committee from Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust (‘the Trust’) sets out the case for 
change and the proposals developed by Trust clinicians for improving the current acute 
medicine and chest pain patient pathways. 
 
The Trust wishes to engage as widely as possible on the proposals during a planned 
engagement period. 
 
The July public meeting of the Trust Board will receive a report on the feedback from the 
engagement process before making a final decision on implementation of the new pathways. 
from August 2016. 
 
 
2. Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust overview 
 
The Trust provides acute and specialist healthcare for a population of nearly two million 
people in North West London, and more beyond. We have five hospitals – Charing Cross, 
Hammersmith, Queen Charlotte’s & Chelsea, St Mary’s and Western Eye – as well as a 
growing number of community services. 
 
With our academic partner, Imperial College London, we are one of the UK’s seven 
academic health science centres, working to ensure the rapid translation of research for 
better patient care and excellence in education. We are also part of Imperial College Health 
Partners – the academic health science network for North West London – spreading 
innovation and best practice in healthcare more widely across our region. 
 
 
3. Clinical strategy 
 
The publication of the Trust’s clinical strategy in July 2014 was a major milestone, kick-
starting a long-term programme of clinical transformation to ensure we are able to meet 
future health needs and enabling our current services and models of care to respond to 
more immediate pressures. It reflected the wider healthcare strategy for North West London, 
led by our local commissioners, in the form of the ‘Shaping a healthier future’ transformation 
programme. 
 
The clinical strategy is designed to improve clinical outcomes and patient experience, to help 
people stay as healthy as possible and to increase access to the most effective specialist 

Page 96



2 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

care. It also responds to changing needs, with more of us living with multiple, long-term 
conditions like diabetes, heart disease, asthma and dementia.  
 
The clinical strategy focuses on: 
 

 creating more local and integrated services, to improve access and help keep people 
healthy and out of hospital 

 concentrating specialist services where necessary, to increase quality and safety 

 ensuring better organised care, to improve patient experience as well as clinical 
outcomes 

 developing more personalised medicine, capitalising on advances in genetics and 
molecular medicine. 

 
The Trust’s Clinical Strategy sees our three main hospital sites building on their own 
distinctive, but interdependent, focus: 
 

 Charing Cross Hospital: evolving to become a new type of local hospital, with 
planned, integrated and rehabilitation care 

 Hammersmith Hospital and Queen Charlotte’s & Chelsea Hospital: extending 
their role as specialist hospitals 

 St Mary’s Hospital with a co-located Western Eye Hospital: being the major 
acute hospital for the area. 

 
 

4. Clinical Strategy Implementation Programme 
 
The Trust has established the Clinical Strategy Implementation Programme (CSIP) to 
develop the detailed plans to deliver end state on each site, leading a core of changes every 
year to 2020 and beyond. It will also help shape redevelopments on each site, help set out 
how we achieve standards for seven day services, the workforce strategy for the Trust and 
our approach to achieving financial sustainability. 
 
Four work-streams were developed in September 2015 as ‘phase one’ of CSIP. These were 
selected by the Trust’s Executive Committee with the aim of addressing the issue of in-
patient capacity at St Mary’s Hospital and stabilising acute medical services, whilst 
continuing to support the overall aims of the Clinical Strategy, through the identification of 
new clinical models, service changes and efficiencies.  
 
The CSIP phase one work-streams were as follows: 
 

 Developing the ambulatory care strategy 

 Review of Vascular Surgical services 

 Streamlining the pathway for non-elective patients presenting with chest pain 

 Review of Acute Medical Services. 
 
Strategic Outline Cases followed by Full Business Cases for acute medicine and chest pain 
patients’ pathways were developed and approved within the Trust in the first half of 2016. 
These presented the case for change and preferred options for both these work-streams, as 
the proposals are interlinked and need to be considered together. 
 
At its public meeting in May 2016, the Trust Board agreed to proceed with communication 
and engagement on the proposals for acute medicine and chest pain pathways followed by a 
further report for consideration by the Board in July on the outcomes of this process before 
making a final decision on implementation of the new pathways. 

Page 97



3 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

5. Patient pathway 
 
‘Patient pathway’ is a term which hospitals use to describe the route that a patient will take 
from their first contact with the NHS – usually starting with an appointment with their GP, or 
presenting themselves to an urgent care centre or emergency department or being 
conveyed by ambulance to hospital - through referral, to the completion of their treatment 
and discharge. 
 
It can be thought of as a timeline - on which every event relating to an individual patient’s 
care can be entered. Events such as consultations, diagnosis, treatment, medication, 
assessment, and preparing for discharge from the hospital can all be mapped on this 
timeline. 
 
 
6. The case for change 
 
Our Clinical Strategy Implementation Programme includes two work streams to improve the 
quality and efficiency of pathways for patients who need urgent specialist assessment and 
care or who present with chest pain. 
 
Both these related service change proposals aim to ensure patients see the right physician 
and receive the right care and treatment in the right facilities, first time. 
 
6.1 Acute medicine pathway 
 
Acute medicine is the part of general medicine concerned with the immediate and early 
specialist management of adult patients who present to, or from within, hospitals as urgent 
cases or emergencies. Acute medical emergencies are the most common reason for 
admission to an acute hospital. 
 
Acute medicine hospital services see patients presenting with a wide range of acute medical 
problems, but common problems treated include: 
 

 heart problems 

 asthma, chest infection  and other respiratory conditions 

 gastrointestinal bleeding 

 drug and alcohol problems 

 acute illness in the elderly 

 diabetic complications 

 acute infections and sepsis 
 
Acute medicine is closely linked to emergency medicine and critical care. Acute physicians 
manage the hospital intake of adult medical patients and lead the development of acute care 
pathways for a wide variety of clinical conditions. 
 
The Trust provides acute medicine services for adult patients at its three main sites: Charing 
Cross, Hammersmith and St Mary’s hospitals. 
 
The current acute medicine service at Hammersmith Hospital was reviewed and re-
organised as part of the arrangements to manage the safe closure of the emergency unit 
and the expansion of the urgent care centre to a 24/7 service in September 2014. 
 
Acute medicine at Hammersmith Hospital is provided through the Specialist Medical 
Assessment Centre and Acute Medical Ward C8. The patient case mix is mainly cardiology, 

Page 98



4 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

renal and haematology and short-stay acute medicine. A telephone-based resource staffed 
by nurses offers advice and referral assistance for local GPs. 
 
The proposed change to the way acute medical services are delivered has a number of 
drivers, high among which are patient safety, improved quality of clinical care and 
experience, and the need to train within the specialty. 
 
As Hammersmith Hospital builds its role as a specialist hospital further, it has become clear 
that the acute medical pathway is not providing the quick and seamless access to specialist 
teams which it was intended to, and, for many patients, can act as an additional, 
unnecessary stage in their care pathway. 
 
Acutely ill patients require rapid access to the right senior clinical decision makers who can 
provide clinical assessment and illness management. 
 
Currently, patients can wait for a significant amount of time for a specialist care bed which 
delays their diagnosis, treatment, transfer or discharge. 
 
Too many patients are simply waiting for a specialist bed which is something these 
proposals are set to change by providing direct access to specialties. 
 
There is therefore a clear need to improve how our acute medicine services are organised to 
provide more effective and efficient patient access to acute care - whenever that need 
arises. 
 
6.2 Chest pain pathway 
 
Currently, patients in West London who the London Ambulance Service suspects are having 
a heart attack are conveyed directly to the Heart Assessment Centre at Hammersmith 
Hospital. These proposals are not related to this patient pathway which will remain 
unchanged. 
 
Many other patients who need specialist chest pain expertise will first be admitted for 
assessment to Charing Cross or St Mary’s hospitals through their emergency departments 
before being transferred to the Heart Assessment Centre at Hammersmith Hospital. This 
way of working adds an additional, unnecessary stage to the patient’s care pathway. 
 
These patients frequently comment on the number of different hospitals and wards they visit 
before arriving at the Heart Assessment Centre at Hammersmith Hospital and do not 
understand why this happens. 
 
After being assessed at Charing Cross or St Mary’s hospitals, patients must wait for a bed to 
become available in the Heart Assessment Centre and then for transport to be arranged to 
Hammersmith Hospital. Upon arrival at the Heart Assessment Centre, patients are then 
assessed again. 
 
Our data shows that 73 per cent of patients requiring a cardiology procedure directly 
admitted to Hammersmith Hospital have their procedure within 72 hours - while only 49 per 
cent of those coming from other hospitals - including St Mary’s and Charing Cross hospitals - 
have their procedure within 72 hours. 
 
These ‘bottlenecks’ in the flow of chest pain patients have led to prolonged admission times, 
longer average length of hospital stays, reduced quality of care and unsatisfactory patient 
and staff experience. 
 

Page 99



5 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

The bottlenecks also result in a number of beds being unnecessarily occupied on our St 
Mary’s and Charing Cross hospital sites, which is not best for patients and reduces available 
beds for new urgent cases or emergencies. 
 
 
7. Proposed improvements to acute medicine and chest pain pathways 
 
7.1 Proposal for acute medicine pathway 
 
Our clinicians have worked up a detailed proposal for enabling faster direct access to 
specialist services at Hammersmith Hospital for long-term patients - primarily renal, 
haematology and cardiology services - when required, while boosting acute medicine 
provision for patients using our emergency departments at Charing Cross and St Mary’s 
hospitals. 
 
The Specialist Medical Assessment Centre and Acute Medical Ward C8 at Hammersmith 
Hospital are often used for patients waiting for a bed on a specialist ward. These proposals 
would provide direct access to specialist wards, for both patients admitted through our 
emergency departments or for long-term patients with whom we have established protocols 
for managing any deterioration in their conditions. 
 
The proposal includes the following developments: 
 

 new arrangements for receiving emergency renal and haematology patients through 
a specialist unit, providing a safe direct access pathway for patients into these 
specialties and a reduction in inter-hospital transfers 

 expansion of acute medicine services at Charing Cross Hospital and St Mary’s 
Hospital 

 introduction of an improved chest pain patient pathway - see below. 

 
Also supporting the further development of Hammersmith Hospital as a centre for excellence 
for specialist services, a Planned Investigation Unit (PIU) for endocrinology, 
gastroenterology, interventional radiology, respiratory and rheumatology would become the 
central hub for patients to be referred and cared for by these specialities. The current PIU 
services provided at Charing Cross Hospital and Hammersmith Hospital would be combined 
on the Hammersmith site, allowing the Charing Cross site to expand its acute medical 
services. 
 
This proposal is also designed to help us continue to make improvements in junior doctor 
training and staffing. 
 
It has been increasingly difficult over recent years to staff the junior doctor rotas that provide 
the acute medicine service at Hammersmith Hospital, especially out-of-hours. Our doctors in 
training need to have a good breadth of experience on their acute medicine rotation and the 
specialist focus of the Hammersmith Hospital site means that is difficult to provide. 
 
Consolidating our acute medicine rotas at Charing Cross and St Mary’s hospitals will provide 
junior doctors with a better training experience and reduce reliance on expensive locum 
staff. 
 
7.2 Proposal for chest pain pathway 
 

Page 100



6 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

The second related proposal developed by Trust clinicians is designed to improve care for 
patients with chest pain, building on the major advances in outcomes achieved by 
consolidating care for patients with suspected heart attacks and other very serious, acute 
heart conditions at the Heart Assessment Centre at Hammersmith Hospital. 
 
There are many potential causes of chest pain which is not always caused by a problem with 
the heart, but it can sometimes be a symptom of: 
 

 angina – where the blood supply to the muscles of the heart is restricted 

 heart attack – where the blood supply to part of the heart is suddenly blocked 
 
Most chest pain is not heart-related and is not a sign of a life-threatening problem. Some 
common causes of chest pain include: 
 

 Gastro-oesophageal reflux disease 

 Bone or muscle problems 

 Anxiety and panic attacks 

 Lung conditions 
 
Other possible causes include: 
 

 shingles 
 mastitis 
 acute cholecystitis 
 stomach ulcers 
 a pulmonary embolism 
 pericarditis 

 
The appropriate hospital specialty or service which will eventually provide patient care and 
treatment therefore depends on the outcome of the diagnosis of an individual patient’s chest 
pain. 
 
Our clinicians have been working with London Ambulance Service and other partners to 
explore how we could build capacity and pathways at Hammersmith Hospital so that more 
patients with chest pain are able to go to the Heart Assessment Centre directly. 
 
The proposal includes the following developments: 
 

 phase 1 - patients presenting at St Mary’s or Charing Cross hospitals’ emergency 
departments with chest pain presumed to be of cardiac origin (i.e not respiratory or 
gastro-related) to be transferred directly to the Heart Assessment Centre at 
Hammersmith Hospital 

 phase 2 - patients who present to London Ambulance Service with chest pain which 
is presumed to be of cardiac origin (i.e. not respiratory or gastro-related) and who 
previously would have been conveyed to Charing Cross or St Mary’s hospitals’ 
emergency departments, to be conveyed directly to the Heart Assessment Centre at 
Hammersmith Hospital 

 improved facilities at the Heart Assessment Centre to create a better, more private 
environment for patients 

 an additional 10-15 cardiology beds at Hammersmith Hospital where patients can 
recuperate after their treatment in the Heart Assessment Centre and provide the 
capacity to accept patients more quickly 

Page 101



7 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

 closer working between cardiology and other clinical teams - such as medicine for 
the elderly - to ensure patients who, post assessment and/or procedure, do not 
require further specialist cardiology care are either quickly referred to another 
specialist service, if required, or safely discharged. 

 
As stated above, patients in West London who the London Ambulance Service suspect are 
having a heart attack are currently conveyed directly to the Heart Assessment Centre at 
Hammersmith Hospital. These proposals are not related to this patient pathway which will 
remain unchanged. 
 
7.3 Potential timescales 
 
The proposal is for these changes to take place in the second half of 2016 before the winter 
period, subject to the outcomes of the engagement process and further consideration of 
these by the Trust Board before reaching a decision. 
 
 
8. Benefits of the proposed changes 
 
The Trust believes that the proposed changes will bring significant benefits for patients, their 
families and carers, and our staff, through: 
 

 Patients seeing the right physician and receiving the right care and treatment in the 
right facilities, first time 

 Improved outcomes for patients 

 Reduced patient transfers between hospitals 

 Better patient experience 

 Reduced average length of stay for patients 

 Patients who need specialist chest pain expertise being able to directly access our 
cardiology team at the Heart Assessment Centre at Hammersmith Hospital 

 Improved facilities at the Heart Assessment Centre to create a better, more private 
environment for patients and improve patient flow through the department 

 Additional 10-15 cardiology beds at Hammersmith Hospital where patients can 
recuperate after their treatment in the Heart Assessment Centre 

 Improved, direct access to specialist renal and haematology services at 
Hammersmith Hospital 

 Expanded acute medicine services at Charing Cross Hospital and St Mary’s Hospital 

 Supporting Hammersmith Hospital as the centre of excellence for specialist services, 
focused on meeting the needs of patients with cardiac, cancer, renal and 
haematological disease 

 Improved way of working delivering efficiency savings. 
 
 
9. Engagement and next steps 
 
These clinician-led proposals are the first main outputs from our Clinical Strategy 
Implementation Programme and are intended to improve clinical outcomes and patient 
experience while delivering efficiency savings. 
 
Gathering and listening to feedback on these proposals is an important part of the process 
for achieving effective service change and delivering benefits to patients. 
 

Page 102



8 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: June 2016 

 

The proposals would have an impact on how urgent and emergency patients are assessed 
and admitted to our hospitals, particularly on how urgent GP referrals are managed and how 
London Ambulance Service makes future decisions on where to convey patients. Now that 
we have considered our processes and patient flows in detail and worked up the proposals, 
we want to engage with GPs, patients, user groups, local authorities and commissioners, 
and local people more widely on how to take this work forward. 
 
The Trust Board asked for an engagement programme lasting at least four weeks in the 
June/July period to explain the plans and to seek feedback from local residents and patients, 
local authorities, GPs and commissioners, and other stakeholders. 
 
The engagement period features a publication setting out the case for change and the 
proposals to explain why and how the Trust wants to improve the acute medicine and chest 
pain patient pathways. The proposals document clearly states that the Trust wishes to 
engage as widely as possible on the proposals and how comments and feedback can be 
provided during the engagement period. 
 
The July public meeting of the Trust Board will receive a report on the feedback from the 
engagement process before making a final decision on implementation of the new pathways 
in the second half of 2016 before the winter period. 

Page 103



 

Health, Social Care and Social Inclusion Policy and Accountability 
Committee 

 

Work Programme 2015/2016 
 

3 June 2015 

Preparing for Adulthood: A Report About Young People Aged 14-25 with 
Disabilities 
Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust: CQC Report  
The Francis Inquiry Recommendations: Responses by Chelsea and 
Westminster Hospital NHSFT and Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust 

9. Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHSFT: Integration with West 
Middlesex Hospital 

10.  

7 July 2015 

Addressing Food Poverty in Hammersmith & Fulham 
Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHSFT: Integration with West 
Middlesex Hospital  
Primary Care Briefing: GP Networks Network Plan 2015-2016 and Out of 
Hospital Services 
 

14 September 2015 

Customer Satisfaction 
Immunisation Uptake 
New Home Care Service 
West London Mental Health NHS Trust: Development of Services 
 

4 November 2015 

Immunisation Uptake: Update  
CQC Inspections: Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust and 
West London Mental Health NHS Trust 
Public Health: introduction to community services and strategy and in year 
Public Health savings 
 

19 January 2016 

Healthcare Commission Report 
Safeguarding Adults: H&F Report 
 

2 February 2016 

2016 Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust: Winter Pressure and Outpatients 
PAS Update 
Care Act Part 1 
 

14 March 2016 

An update on Charing Cross revised  

 
18 April 2016 

Flu Vaccination: Update and Monitoring Data (to include CNWL) 
GP Access 
Social isolation and loneliness in the borough.  
Co-production in commissioning  

 

Page 104

Agenda Item 9



 
 

14 June 2016 
 

 CLCH - Quality Account  

 Refreshed Food Poverty ‘strategy’  

 To improve the quality and efficiency of pathways for patients who 
need urgent specialist assessment and care or who present with 
chest pain. 

Future Meetings 

The like minded strategy (North West London collaboration of clinical 
commissioning groups  
Meal Agenda 
Digital Inclusion Strategy 
Impact of devolution on Local Health Services 
Care Act 

11. Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust: Integration with 
West Middlesex Hospital  
Co-commissioning Work  
Commissioning Strategy: Providers 

12. Community Champions 
13. Community Independence Service 

Customer Journey: Update 
End of Life Care: JSNA and CLCH to Update on Action Plan 
Equality and Diversity Programmes and Support for Vulnerable Groups 
H&F CCG Performance 
H&F Foodbank 
Immunisation: Report from the HWB Task and Finish Group 
Integration of Healthcare, Social Care and Public Health 
Listening To and Supporting Carers 
Public Health Report 
Self-directed Support: Progress Update 
Vaccinations 
West London Mental Health Trust: Update 
Antibiotic prescriptions 

 

Page 105


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Committee Membership 2016/17, Appointment of Vice Chair and TERMS OF REFERENCE
	6 ADDRESSING FOOD POVERTY IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM
	Appendix 1 HF Food Poverty Action Plan update May 2016

	7 DRAFT CLCH'S QUALITY ACCOUNT FOR 2015-16
	CLCH QUALITY ACCOUNT 2015 – 16

	8 CLINICAL SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS - PROPOSED NEW PATHWAYS FOR ACUTE MEDICINE AND CHEST PAIN PATIENTS
	Imperial College Healthcare LBHF Health Committee 140616 Final

	9 Work Programme

